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Five-year Financial Summary

IFMBRE

A summary of the results, assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of Peiport Holdings Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below:

HETENEELYBREABRAREEE
5,/ EFDBORFERERRR ([RRF])
REME LR (5[ AEE])BEDEMK
FENEE BE REMHEBRESNORE
o

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—-HLEFE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
=B-2F _TNF —T-N\F _T+F ZTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET FET FET FHET
REVENUE & 290,590 275,354 262,080 238,406 251,875
Gross profit EH 83,256 93,142 94,055 82,998 82,710
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE AR F 32,538 36,344 19,806 44215 33,359
Income tax expense FTBRiRY (5,352) (6,031) (8,299) (9,290) (7,720)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR S E 357! 27,186 30,313 11,507 34,925 25,639
Attributable to equity RRRIEREE AEN
holders of the parent 27,186 30,313 11,507 34,469 26,038
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- EE BERFERES
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EB-EE —ZT-HhE —ZE-N\E —ZE—+HFE —E—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET TET TET FET
Total assets BEE 405,506 360,117 256,446 304,699 272,861
Total liabilities BEE (54,223) (38,785) (71,132) (38,731) (44,093)

Non-controlling interests  JEizefxiEzs =

- - - (1,877)

351,283 321,332 185,314 265,968 226,891

Note:

The financial statements of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2017 was extracted from the prospectus of the Company issued on 31 December
2018 (the “Prospectus”) in connection with the listing of the Company's shares (the
“Listing"”) on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 11 January 2019 (the “Listing Date").
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Corporate Information (Continued)

NEEF (F)
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Corporate Information (Continued)

NEEF(F)
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Chairman’s Statement

EFLEE

Dear Valuable Shareholders,

Time files and it has been two years since the Listing of
Peiport Holdings Ltd.. We will go through the long and
arduous journey with determination and perseverance. In
2020, the overall performance of the Group's three major
business segments, including: (1) thermal imaging products
and services, (2) self-stabilised imaging products and
services, and (3) general aviation products and services was
modest and had room for improvement. |, on behalf of all
directors of the board (the “Board"”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company hereby, present the annual
report (the “Annual Report”) for 2020 and the plans and
expectations for 2021.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ETREEE (E)

THE UNUSUAL YEAR OF 2020

The outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
has continued since early 2020, and the changes in
relationship between the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") and the United States of America (the “United
States”) have been affecting the economic development of
Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue of 2020 was not as
expected. However, the demand for the Group’s infrared
body temperature screening system increased significantly
during the year. Various large and medium-sized companies,
such as government departments and agencies, private
hospitals, hotels, commercial buildings and entertainment
venues, have adopted our body temperature screening
system in line with the COVID-19 precautionary measures of
the government. In addition, our cooperation with the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology on high-end
intelligent detection system has also started to enter the
Hong Kong market. As a result, the revenue of our thermal
imaging products and services business segment increased
by approximately HK$6.3 million as compared with the same
period of last year. In addition, with the continuous
deregulation of lower airspace in Mainland China, various
private enterprises have invested in the development of
aircraft for manufacturing operations, and our one-stop
aviation power system solutions have been recognised by
various aircraft manufacturers, resulting in a significant
increase in the revenue of our general aviation products and
services business segment by approximately HK$10.7
million as compared to the same period last year.

The Hong Kong research and development (“R&D"”) centre
settled in the Hong Kong Science Park in 2019 and has
made certain achievements. We will continue to improve
the quality of our self-developed products and develop new
products by fully utilising the R&D centre, and will complete
the relocation plan of the R&D centre in Mainland China as
soon as possible to further expand our self-stabilised
imaging products and services business segment.

Reviewing year 2020, the Group's total revenue amounted
to approximately HK$290.6 million, representing an increase
of approximately 5.5% as compared to HK$275.4 million for
2019, of which the general aviation products and services
business segment recorded an increase of approximately
12.7%, while the thermal imaging products and services
business segment recorded an increase of 4.0%.

TrSEN-ZE_ZEF

2019 EMFESHE([COVID-19) R —FE T4
FYBEFBIREARPEAREFER([F
Bl ) AERERERE ([ ]) BEMNE(L—F
ERERBTNCERE - AEBR T =T F
IR sS AR aNIRAE « BAKEMAIMNE RS R4
RERZERKEKRE  ZEBTEE LRE
Bt OBE  BMERERIREZHENDRFR
NAERA R MAE R RS - RS BT
H COVID-19Br & 16+ I E B MIFMEERHE
ARESENEHRS ZRARSGBFAGBEARTS
M5 ﬁﬁ&ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁm&%%¥%Wﬁ
ZWEREFRFLLIEMA6IEE BT -
A BEE R RAHIFENE 1ﬁﬁﬁmaﬂ
TORE ﬁ%%&AééﬁﬁiLW%%m
1725 MBRMN—MAMEB N ESHEBE
W@yﬂh%i&ﬁm eI ﬁ&ﬁm & fn
eEMm MRS ER RSB BINAR - &)
EFEFLIZMNL 107 BEBTT °

FENME(HEDPLR-_F-NFEHEE
BRI EERE —ERKAE ﬁzfﬁﬂi’}a 173&
MERL REETEMNEEARMENE
o WA R TEAK B A B B R O B R B A
3 E—PHRBRMNEREREER KRS
EIEIRIE -

OE_Z-_TFFE ALEEMNBKENH
2006E AL LT NFFEM2754
BEBTIERLNE5% HPBAMEERNL
RIS SESRIRE 47 12.7% B & - MEKIRE
o MR TG EFERIRAIB 4.0% HIE K o
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEEE (8)

PLANS AND EXPECTATIONS FOR 2021

The general economic situation in Hong Kong is expected to
be more challenging in 2021 as COVID-19 is ever-evolving
and the relationship between Mainland China, Europe and
the United States is still not optimistic. However, we will
continue to work with a positive attitude in respect of our
existing three business segments, which include:

(1)

(2)

Thermal imaging products and services

As COVID-19 continues to be uncertain, it is expected
that there is still certain market demand for infrared
body temperature screening devices in Hong Kong. As
a result, we will develop a wider range of products to
suit the needs of the Hong Kong market. At the same
time, we will also enhance our maintenance and repair
services to our users. Currently, certain after-sales
services of the mid-to-high end infrared body
temperature screening systems entering the Hong
Kong market are not able to keep up. Hence, we will
leverage on the strength of our “Peiport” brand and the
quality service of the local company in this regard to
continue to provide users with high-quality services as
well as to maintain and expand our occupied market
share. In Mainland China, we are also researching new
infrared thermal imaging and optoelectronics products
and exploring new projects, with a view to leverage our
market capabilities of covering our branches in various
major cities of Mainland China and increase our
marketing efforts in order to raise our turnover.

Self-stabilised imaging products and services

In respect of the self-stabilised imaging products and
services for high-voltage power line inspection and
security monitoring system, with the increasing
number of high-voltage power lines and helicopter fleet
in Mainland China, and the increasing demand and
services for marine gimbal system for marine patrol
and fire rescue in Hong Kong, it is believed that this
business segment will grow to a certain extent. In
order to meet the market demands in Mainland China
and Hong Kong, our R&D centres in Hong Kong and
Guangzhou had developed and are developing new
models of products. These products and relevant
services will be introduced to the market gradually, in
order to enrich our product portfolio.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ETREEE (E)

(3) General aviation products and services

The development of the domestic general aviation
market is relatively positive. In addition to sports
aircraft, the demand for small aircraft for industrial and
agricultural use is also gradually increasing. The Group
will continue to enhance the solution design capabilities
of our “Aviation Power System Division” and invest
more capital and manpower to provide better pre-sales
and post-sales services to users. It is expected that the
general aviation products and services business
segment will achieve considerable growth in 2021.

APPRECIATION

With the farewell to the year of Gengzi, we welcome the
year of Xinchou. Embracing the new year of Ox in this
spring, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all staff of Peiport Group for their hard
work, dedication and contribution to the development and
progress of the Group in 2020. Meanwhile, | would also like
to express my sincere gratitude to all shareholders for their
full support, love and tolerance. In addition, | would also like
to thank our customers and business partners who work
with us for their recognition, support and help. The road is
long and meandering, and we shall endeavor to go forward.
We will continue our efforts and look forward to achieving
better results in 2021, so as to repay our shareholders for
their love and care for Peiport Holdings. Thank you!

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmEIN

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2020, we experienced global economic and social
turbulence on a large scale. The outbreak of COVID-19 has
led to a significant weakening in gross domestic product
("GDP") in many of major economies in varying degrees.
Amid COVID-19 pandemic, the GDP of Mainland China
maintained positive growth in 2020 and rose 2.3% on a year-
to-year basis. While in Hong Kong, the fourth wave of
COVID-19 pandemic hit the shores, it created a great deal of
uncertainty and disruption for the businesses and
communities. The unemployment rate in Hong Kong rose to
7.2% for the three months period to February 2021, the
highest rate since 2004, the economy is shrinking.

Amid continuing challenges posed by the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group has maintained a mild growth in
revenue during the year. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the revenue of the Group increased by
HK$15.2 million, which represented a growth of 5.5% on a
year-to-year basis. As a result of the discount in selling price
for bulk purchase and the increase in cost of products, the
gross profit of the Group decreased by HK$9.8 million,
which represented a decrease of 10.5% on a year-to-year
basis.

Respond to COVID-19

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the government in the
Mainland China and Hong Kong have imposed stringent
measure in disease containment, the Group had overcame
many challenges and maintained a strong momentum in the
second half of 2020. We experienced a fast recovery growth
of order and product demand.

The Group worked relentlessly to maintain effective
operations and provide quality products and services, aim to
minimise the impact to our employees, customers and
business partners. We undertook a series of initiatives to
fight against the epidemic.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN W& (F)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
Respond to COVID-19 (Continued)

Our first priority is to ensure the health and safety of our
employees. We keep evaluating and updating the measures
in place to help our people to stay safe at work. We
introduced social distancing measures and offered our
employees flexible work arrangements to prevent them
from gathering in the offices. We provided personal
protective equipment such as face masks to our employees
to reduce the risk of infection.

We maintained an effective communication with our
customers and business partners. In response to the
changing environment in the epidemic, we offered new
products and solutions to our customers, especially our
thermal imaging products that serves our customers with
different epidemic control needs.

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, we took a more prudent
approach and delayed our plan on establishing new R&D
centre in Guangzhou. However, the Group has made
continuous effort on technological innovation. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has spent HK$5.6
million in research and development, which represented an
increase of 36.6% on a year-to-year basis.

(¥KOERRE (E)
FE¥ COVID-19 (#&)

BANEEEBABRREINRERLE - &
PIRFE R R ERHIE R - UPHB TR
T1E - BFIE T BB R A B TR
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R -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEEENRRE D (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Performance of Segment

A summary of revenue from different segments of the
Group is set out below:

(1)

Sale of thermal imaging products and provision of
services

Our products and services in this segment can broadly
be divided into three categories: (i) products under our
own brand name, PTi; (ii) products of other brands; and
(i) thermal imaging inspection services. Our products
are widely used in general consumption, commercial
and industrial fields.

In an effort to curb the spread of the COVID-19
pandemic, many companies and government agencies
has adopted our infrared body temperature screening
systems, prompting a strong growth in the demand of
this segment.

We continued to improve our products and make
progress to achieve our long-term vision. We
successfully launched the high-end intelligent detection
system during the year, in collaboration with the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology.

Revenue from this segment during the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately HK$162.9 million
(2019: HK$156.6 million). It accounted for approximately
56.0% (2019: 56.8%) of the Group's revenue during the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENWE D (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
Performance of Segment (Continued)

(2) Sale of self-stabilised imaging products and
provision of services

The products in this segment are designed to be
mounted on moving platforms such as aircraft,
helicopters, vessels and ships. The Group deploys a
self-stabilisation technology whereby the imaging
products are mounted on a multiple-axis gimbaled
structure and achieve maximum stabilisation. The
products are traded under own brand name, SkyEye,
SeaVision and PGs. We also rent our self-stabilised
imaging products for aircraft to our customers for a
fixed period at a rental fee.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue
from this segment declined by 5.2% on a year-to-year
basis due to the decrease in demand of one of the
product models of SkyEye. Meanwhile, satisfactory
progress has been made in our R&D centres for the
new product models. We expect the new models
would enable the Group to achieve a robust growth
momentum next year and further increase the market
shares in this segment.

Revenue from this segment during the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately HK$32.8 million
(2019: HK$34.6 million). It accounted for approximately
11.3% (2019: 12.6%) of the Group's revenue during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

EBEOERRE (&)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENWE D (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
Performance of Segment (Continued)

(3) Sale of general aviation products and provision of
services

The services and products in this segment can be
broadly divided into three categories, namely (i) light
and ultra-light aircraft engines and related components
distribution; (ii) maintenance training courses; and (iii)
maintenance and support services. Our maintenance
training courses and maintenance and support services
are mainly carried out in our maintenance centre with a
gross floor area of approximately 1,200 square metres
("sg.m.”) which is located in Zhuhai City, Guangdong
Province. Our customers in this segment include light
and ultra-light aircraft manufacturers, flight schools,
flying entertainment clubs, light aircraft research
institutions and private flight owners.

The development of general aviation industry is one of
the major national development strategy in the PRC.
With the continuous introduction of relevant supportive
government policies in general aviation industry
together with our continuous investments to our
aviation power system division, we believe the
development of this segment is promising and there is
enormous potential for us to further penetrate into the
market.

Revenue from this segment during the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately HK$94.9 million
(2019: HK$84.2 million). It accounted for approximately
32.7% (2019: 30.6%) of the Group’s revenue during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

PEIPORTHOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUALREPORT 2020

EBXOERRE (&)

DERRA ()

(3)

HEBRMZERRREHRE

ZOHNRBERERARAIS B =1
Bl (i) &% Y Ko R 6% AU fin 7 2% B # 2 A5 B 2B
o8 () BB IIRE - RGi#BE R
SRR o BT HISEE I ERIZ DA R4
BRI ERBEEENEREKR SN
V$MM% HAREEMmEL A 1,200F
FARTFERK]D - ZoHNEF BIER
AR GEBE A AT eR RUE R - RITER -
TRITIR SE (R 240 - BOAU T T i 18 K2
FLARBEIEE A o

BRAMETENERETFEIENER
BRBE . -HBERRAMETERSE
HETT AR R AT BRI - A R B P S
EPHNEGREANFERE - RARE
ZOMMBERMERG  BRMABEAX
BNE—TREMHEZER -

HE-_ZT-ZEF+-_A=1+—HLF
€ ZAHRELNREMIFEB T (=
z— ﬁﬁ 842EEBIT) - HE-ZT=
TF+-_A=+— EIJtiJ* ZEEN
MAREBWFNITIN (T —LF:
30.6%) °



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENWE D (&)

PROSPECT

Amid continuing challenges posed by the COVID-19
pandemic, business activities in Hong Kong have generally
slowed down and unemployment rates have increased to
the highest rate since 2004. The Group would continuously
and closely monitor the complicated and volatile situations
ahead.

The development of COVID-19 vaccines has raised hopes of
widespread immunisation being achieved in 2021, the
epidemic is expected to be under control. It is expected that
governments of various countries would introduce more
economic stimulus measures, and the global economic
recovery is expected to be promising.

In the face of ever-changing situation, the Group would
consolidate the foundation for development by accelerating
the research and development pace to maintain its
competitive edge. The Group would also strengthen the
management and control of funds, strive to optimise the
resource allocation including the unutilised proceeds from
the Listing.

Overall, the Group remains confident in the prospects of
Hong Kong and the Mainland China. Leveraging on the
extensive product design and excellent services, the Group
believes it will overcome this unprecedented challenge and
creating long-term value to the shareholders of the
Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEEENRRE D (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group was derived from business
consisting of: (i) thermal imaging products and services; (ii)
self-stabilised imaging products and services; and (iii) general
aviation products and services. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the total revenue of the Group increased
by approximately HK$15.2 million, or 5.5% from
approximately HK$275.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately HK$290.6 million. The
increase was primarily attributable to the following reasons:

(i)

(ii)

Thermal imaging products and services

Revenue derived from thermal imaging products and
services increased by approximately HK$6.3 million, or
4.0%, from approximately HK$156.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$162.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The increase was primarily attributable to an
increase in sales of PTi products from our new and
existing customers as a result of health quarantine
arrangements in Hong Kong.

Self-stabilised imaging products and services

Revenue derived from self-stabilised imaging products
and services decreased by approximately HK$1.8
million, or 5.2%, from approximately HK$34.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$32.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The decrease was mainly attributable to a decrease in
demand for self-stabilised imaging products for aircraft
from our existing customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRRE D (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

(iii) General aviation products and services

Revenue derived from general aviation products and
services increased by approximately HK$10.7 million,
or 12.7%, from approximately HK$84.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$94.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The increase was mainly attributable to our new
customers in the general aviation industry and the
increase in demand from our existing customers as a
result of an increase in demand for light and ultra-light
aircraft engine.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit for the Group decreased from approximately
HK$93.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$83.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, and the gross profit margin decreased by
approximately 5.1% from approximately 33.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately 28.7% for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

(i)

Gross profit margin of thermal imaging products
and services

The gross profit margin of thermal imaging products
and services decreased by approximately 6.6% from
approximately 30.1% for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately 23.5% for the year ended 31
December 2020. The decrease in our gross profit
margin was primarily attributable to the increase in
average cost for SF6 gas imaging camera and UV
cameras.

Bt ¥ o R (7))

iy 58

(i)

(%)
BRMZEE RN RS

BAMTERERREBEENKEHER
—E-NEF+_A=1+—BLEEND
BA2E BB ITLEMMI07E BB LK
NI EBEE_Z-_FF+_A=+—
BIEFENHNMIBTESBT - BmHE
DA G RS R R BB T
Skighn - ERMESBAMTITENT
BEPUNBERFPRE LN -

EFMRERNR

REBHENHBEE - ZE—NF+_A=1+—
AEFENNBIEESTRLEEE -
TFE+ A=+ HIEFENHSIIHES
L MEMEREE T —NLF+_A=+—
HIEFERNA3B8%FMILENI%NEHES
TEE+ A=+ —RHILFENL287% °

(i)

BRBEMRBRHHERNER

BARNGERMRBNENEREE-Z
—hWF+_A=Z+—HLEFEHNY
30 1% M LD 66N EHRE T _TF
+TZA=+—HIEFEMNLN235% - E
FEFBOTIEBEHNSF6 RER G E R
KINRGER T RAIE 0 -

HEERERAT /2020 F 3k

17



18

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEREN W& (F)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin (Continued)
(ii) Gross profit margin of self-stabilised imaging
products and services

The gross profit margin of self-stabilised imaging
products and services decreased by approximately
4.8% from approximately 53.3% for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately 48.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The decrease in our gross
profit margin was primarily attributable to the decrease
in demand of SkyEye 3X-F series, self-stabilised
imaging product with a higher gross profit margin.

(iii) Gross profit margin of general aviation products

and services

The gross profit margin of general aviation products
and services decreased by approximately 2.1% from
approximately 32.8% for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately 30.7% for the year ended 31
December 2020. The decrease in our gross profit
margin was primarily attributable to decrease in
average selling price of engine parts, which was mainly
attributable to the provision of discount to our existing
customers as a result of their bulk purchases.

Other Income and Gains, Net

The Group's other income and gains increased by
approximately HK$6.1 million, or 265.2%, from
approximately HK$2.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately HK$8.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The increase was mainly
attributable to an increase in foreign exchange gain of
approximately HK$6.0 million.

Selling and Distribution Expenses
The Group's selling and distribution expenses remained
relatively stable at approximately HK$28.8 million and

HK$29.1 million for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2020, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENWE D (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses remained relatively
stable at approximately HK$27.9 million and HK$28.3 million
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020,
respectively.

Other Expenses

The Group's other expenses decreased by approximately
HK$0.6 million, or 31.6%, from approximately HK$1.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$1.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
decrease in other expenses was primarily attributable to the
decrease in exchange loss of HK$1.4 million and was
partially offset by the recognition of provision for the
doubtful receivables, net of HK$0.7 million in 2020.

Finance Costs

According to the adoption of the HKFRS 16 Leases issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
effective as of 1 January 2019, at the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee is required to recognise a liability of
lease payment (i.e. the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e. the right-of-use asset). As a result, finance
costs of approximately HK$0.5 million and HK$0.4 million for
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 were
recognised, respectively.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’'s income tax expense decreased by
approximately HK$0.6 million, or 10.0%, from approximately
HK$6.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$5.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, which was primarily resulting from a
decrease in taxable profits during the year ended 31
December 2020. The Group’s effective tax rates remained
relatively stable at approximately 16.5% and 16.4% for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENWE D (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Parent

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, the
Group's profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
parent decreased by approximately HK$3.1 million, or
10.2%, from approximately HK$30.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$27.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with working capital financed mainly by internal
resources. As at 31 December 2020, the Group reported net
current assets of approximately HK$335.6 million, as
compared with approximately HK$302.5 million as at 31
December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's cash and cash
equivalents was approximately HK$210.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$33.1 million
as compared to HK$177.1 million as at 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the net cash
generated from operating activities was approximately
HK$35.3 million (2019: HK$33.6 million). The cash generated
from operating activities was mainly from the profits during
the year ended 31 December 2020. The net cash used in
investing activities was approximately HK$0.4 million (2019:
HK$3.3 million). The net cash used in financing activities
was approximately HK$5.3 million (2019: net cash generated
from financing activities was approximately HK$94.6 million).

The net cash used in investing activities was mainly
attributable to the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets during the year. The net
cash used in financing activities was mainly arising from the
payment of lease liabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN W& (F)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2019: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant
capital commitments (31 December 2019: Nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Functional currency of the Group’s operating subsidiaries is
either Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi, while some of the
Group’'s business transactions and cost of sales are
denominated in United States dollar and Euro.

The Group has transactional currency exposures and such
exposures arise from sales or purchases made by
subsidiaries in currencies other than the subsidiaries’
functional currencies. The Group’s foreign currency exposure
also comprises assets and liabilities denominated in United
States dollar. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not pledge any
assets (31 December 2019: Nil).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2020, since we did not have any bank
borrowings, gearing ratio was not applicable to our Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEEENRRE D (&)

USE OF PROCEEDS rEXIERR

The final offer price for the Listing was HK$1.25 per share, EHHRKRBEEEETR1.2587T  MEE £
and the actual net proceeds from the Listing were TMWMBHEFELNAS12E8ES (LMK L
approximately HK$81.2 million (after deduction of the listing WHAX) - RAFERELE - EWATBHRIE
expenses). As at the date of this Annual Report, the net FEEMERIERWOT :

proceeds from the Listing were utilised as follows:

Amount Amount

utilised as at unutilised as at

the date of the date of

Actual this Annual this Annual

net proceeds Report Report

BT REAFERE REAFERS
HEFE BHCHERSE BERERSH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FAT
Establish new research and EHRBREBZRL
development centres in the PRC GRIE LR
and Hong Kong 39,600 (3,793) 35,807
Enhance the recognition and EeEMEMD
qualification of our products RAE RERK 17,300 (6,946) 10,354
Strengthen our sales capacity and ERHEE I NIE
capture new sales opportunities BETHEME 21,100 (14,714) 6,386
Purchase new information BENEMBHRES
technology hardware K&
and software 2,500 (2,387) 113
Working capital LEES 700 (700) -
81,200 (28,540) 52,660

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Company intends RAFERE A H - $Qﬂﬁ7fﬂ§%{ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
to continue to apply the net proceeds according to the [ARR&HEIRATSFIAM R | —&0FT#0A B
/8 =h

purposes as set out in the section headed “Future Plans and S /EFAPIISFIRFE
Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN W& (F)

USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

In view of the slowdown in growth of the global economy
and the outbreak of COVID-19, the Company has been
taking a more prudent approach in the utilisation of the
unutilised proceeds from the Listing. Furthermore, as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic, countries or cities have
adopted quarantine measures and travel restrictions, hence
leading to delay in implementation of the Company’s use of
proceeds on establishing new R&D centres in the PRC and
enhancing the recognition and qualification of our products
at testing and certification centre in overseas. Subject to the
weakening of the COVID-19 pandemic and the lifting of
travelling and quarantine restrictions, the Directors expect
the use of unutilised proceeds for establishing new research
and development centres in the PRC and Hong Kong and
enhancing the recognition and qualification of the Group’s
products are intended to be fully utilised by the end of 2023,
while the unutilised portion of net proceeds for
strengthening our sales capacity and capture new sales
opportunities is intended to be fully utilised by the end of
2022.

Going forward, the Directors will monitor the outbreak of
COVID-19 and its impact to the global economy to create
greater value for the shareholders of the Company.

All the unutilised balances have been placed in a licensed
bank in Hong Kong.

RESTRUCTURING AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, the
Group did not have any restructuring and significant
investments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEREN W& (F)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had a total of 147 (31 December 2019: 145)
employees as at 31 December 2020. Total staff costs of the
Group (excluding the Directors’ and chief executive officer’'s
remuneration) for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$42.7 million (2019: HK$35.2 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies were in line with relevant
legislation, market conditions and the performance of our
employees.

DIVIDENDS

Having considered the financial and cash flow position of the
Company, as well as to reward the shareholders of the
Company for their continued support during the challenging
economic environment brought about by the COVID-19
pandemic and enhance investors’ confidence in the
Company, the Board recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.35 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “Proposed Final Dividend”) to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Tuesday, 22 June 2021,
subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (the “AGM") to be held on Thursday,
10 June 2021. It is expected that the Proposed Final
Dividend will be paid on or before Thursday, 8 July 2021.
The Proposed Final Dividend shall be declared and
distributed in Hong Kong dollars.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRRE D (&)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A) for determining the entitlement to attend and

(B)

vote at the AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 3 June 2021 to Thursday, 10 June
2021, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfers of shares shall be effected. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the AGM to be held on
Thursday, 10 June 2021, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
transfer forms, must be lodged for registration with the
Hong Kong share registrar of the Company, Union
Registrars Limited at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two
Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’'s Road, North
Point, Hong Kong no later than 4:00 p.m. on
Wednesday, 2 June 2021.

for determining the entitlement to the
Proposed Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 18 June 2021 to Tuesday, 22 June 2021,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to
be eligible to receive the Proposed Final Dividend, all
transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms, must be lodged for
registration with the Hong Kong share registrar of the
Company, Union Registrars Limited at Suites 3301-04,
33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King's
Road, North Point, Hong Kong no later than 4:00 p.m.
on Thursday, 17 June 2021.
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Directors and Senior Management

EERGREEE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching (# &%), aged 72, is the founder of
our Group. Mr. Yeung is the chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Mr. Yeung was appointed as a Director
on 19 December 2017. He is in charge of the strategic
direction and development strategy of our Group. Mr. Yeung
is also a director of a number of our subsidiaries and the
member of the Company’s remuneration committee.

Mr. Yeung has over 20 years of experience in the
optoelectronics and general aviation industry. He obtained
his bachelor's degree in aeronautical engineering from
Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (F 5
ZEHAKE) (formerly known as Nanjing College of
Aeronautics (F R ZEEET)) in June 1982. Mr. Yeung started
his career in the industry working as a designer of aircraft
machinery at the Aviation Department Aircraft Design
Institute* (P EIMZE TE48A R /N —— LA, also known
as P9JIIAX#EP611FT) from February 1982 to May 1985 where
he was mainly responsible for design of aircraft machinery.
He joined Schmidt & Co., (Hong Kong) Ltd., a company
focusing on system integration, in May 1986 and was
promoted to the role of product manager in January 1993
responsible for business development. He then founded our
Group in April 1998 and has served as managing director of
our Group since then.

Mr. Yeung served as the general manager (B2 %) of
Infrared Analysis Society of China* (BN HTEE) in
1989. In 2004, he was appointed as the Economic
Development Consultant of Meijiang District, Meizhou* (&
N TR&ET S EEEER) by the Meizhou Meijian
Committee Meizhou Meijiang People’s Government* (FF 2%
NTEIREZEE/MNTHIRARBN). He was
awarded the title of the 20th Anniversary of Meijiang District
Outstanding Contributor* (/T [RZE205BF = ERE) by
the Meizhou Meijian Committee Meizhou Meijiang People’s
Government* (R HGMTAHHIRZE S SHMNHIELIEARK
fF) in 2008. Besides, Mr. Yeung was appointed as the
Honorary Vice-chairman of Fifth Executive Committee of
Guangzhou Land, Marine and Aero Modelling Association*
(BMNmEEERIESHHEFAERESERZEREF) in
2011.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERGHEEE (&)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yeung has obtained various qualifications, including (i)
the Service and Maintenance Course for Ultralight Aircraft
Engines ROTAX 582-618-912 Diploma from ROTAX in
March 1993; (ii) the Thermovision 500 Operator Training
Course awarded by Agema Infrared Systems in October
1997; (iii) The American Society for Nondestructive Testing
Level Il Certificate Program in October 1999; and (iv) the
Thermal Imaging Fundamentals Certificate awarded by FLIR
Infrared Training Centre in June 2007. Mr. Yeung further
completed the Advanced CEO Program* ({P%42%(CEO)&
WAHMEE) at Tsinghua University in May 2010.

Mr. Yeung is the spouse of Ms. WONG Kwan Lik and the
father of Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai.

Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (E#f ), aged 64, is the chief executive
officer and an executive Director. Ms. Wong was appointed
as a Director on 19 December 2017. She joined our Group in
April 1998 and has since then taken an active part in the
sales and operation of our Group. Ms. Wong is also a
director of a number of our subsidiaries and the member of
the Company’s nomination committee.

Ms. Wong has over 20 years of experience in the
optoelectronics and general aviation industry. From February
1982 to May 1986, Ms. Wong worked on aviation machinery
research at the Aviation Department Aircraft Design
Institute* (AP EIfATZE T3 4B A R /N — LA, also known
as PUJIIEX#B611F7). Ms. Wong has been serving as the sales
manager of Peiport Scientific Limited (“Peiport Scientific”)
and Peiport Scientific Aero Limited (“Peiport Aero”) from
April 1998 to June 2018 and from July 2018 to March 2019,
respectively. Since 1 April 2019, she has been promoted to
the managing director of Peiport Aero and is responsible for
planning and coordination of sales and operations of our
Group.

Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor’'s degree in aeronautical
engineering from Nanjing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics (FA = Z=EfIAKE) (formerly known as Nanjing
College of Aeronautics (R M ZEEFT)) in June 1982.

Ms. Wong is the spouse of Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching and the
mother of Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERSREEE (&)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai (#%#&28), aged 33, is an executive
Director. Mr. Yeung was appointed as a Director on 22
August 2018. Mr. Yeung joined our Group in February 2016
and has since then taken part in the management of
operation and supplier relationship of our Group.

Mr. Yeung has over 4 years of experience in the
optoelectronics and general aviation industry. From April
2013 till February 2014, Mr. Yeung worked as an associate
in the ICT hardware department under the Bell Professional
Management Program of Bell Canada, and was responsible
for building and maintaining the office’'s computers and
facilities. He was promoted to the position of technical
analyst in October 2013 and was responsible for managing
the daily work of the ICT hardware department. From
August 2014 to March 2015, Mr. Yeung joined Bell Business
Market of Bell Canada and worked as a technical analyst,
responsible for building, testing and deploying Cisco
telephone scripts for customers. Mr. Yeung has been
working as the marketing manager of Peiport Scientific and
Peiport Aero from February 2016 to June 2018 and from
July 2018 to March 2019, respectively. Since 1 April 2019,
he has been promoted to the business development director
of Peiport Aero and is mainly responsible for managing the
daily operations of our Group.

Mr. Yeung obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
McMaster University in Canada in June 2010, majoring in
computer engineering. He further obtained a master’s
degree in engineering from McMaster University in June
2013, majoring in electrical and computer engineering.

Mr. Yeung is the son of Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching and Ms.
WONG Kwan Lik.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERGHEEE (&)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie (4#&&), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 December 2018.
He is responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to our Board. Mr. Niu is also the chairman of the
Company’s nomination committee and the member of the
audit committee and remuneration committee.

Mr. Niu has worked with various financial institutions and
has extensive experience in equity capital markets. He
served as a director of Vision Finance Asset Management
Limited from February 2008 to January 2015. He has been
the director of Vision Finance International Company Limited
since September 2007 to present, and has also been the
responsible officer of the company to carry on type 1
(dealing in securities) and type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) regulated activities since November 2007.
Furthermore, he has been the responsible officer for type 4
(advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities of Vision Finance Asset Management
Limited since December 2008 and July 2010, respectively.

He has served as an independent non-executive director of
Nanjing Sample Technology Company Ltd. (stock code:
1708) since 27 May 2019. Mr. Niu previously served as an
independent non-executive director of Gold-Finance
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1462), from 3 February 2016
to 15 May 2019. He also previously served as an executive
director of Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group
Limited (stock code: 1803), from 23 April 2015 to 7
November 2018.

Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen (5 #3%), aged 45, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 December
2018. She is responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to our Board. Ms. Yeung is also the
chairwoman of the Company’s audit committee and the
member of the nomination committee.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERSREEE (&)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Yeung has over 20 years of experience in finance and
accounting. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Yeung worked in
various companies being responsible in the finance and
accounting aspects, among which she served as (i) a staff
accountant in the audit department of Ernst & Young in
Hong Kong from September 1997 to March 1999; (ii) an
accounting officer of China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd
from September 1999 to 2002; (iii) an accountant of Bruker
Optics Inc. from January 2006 to February 2007; (iv) the
accounting manager and financial controller of PCC Asia LCC
since April 2007 to June 2019 and from July 2019 to March
2020, respectively; and (v) the wealth management manager
of AIA Company Limited since September 2020.

Ms. Yeung was awarded the Bachelor of Arts (Hons) Degree
in Accountancy by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
1997. Ms. Yeung was admitted in January 2007 as a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). She is currently a Certified Public
Accountant registered with the HKICPA. She has been a
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
since May 2006.

Mr. HOU Min ({%3&), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 December 2018.
He responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to our Board. Mr. Hou is also the chairman of the
company’s remuneration committee and the member of the
audit committee.

Mr. Hou has over 20 years of experience in the aviation
industry. From 1980 to 1994, Mr. Hou served in the PRC
military. Mr. Hou served as an officer at the Anti-Smuggling
Bureau of the Beijing Customs Office between September
1994 and March 2002. From 2002 to 2004, Mr. Hou was
employed by Sino Television Co. Ltd (1Bt BR A7) as
a pilot for aerial photography. From May 2012 to December
2013, Mr. Hou worked at Anhui Dinghong General Aviation
Company Limited* (ZBTBZRBAMZEERAF) (previously
known as the Anhui Dinghong General Aviation Company
Limited* (Z &R Z=@AMZEAR R A A]), with his last position
being the general manager responsible for daily operations.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERGHEEE (&)

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

From February 2015 to August 2017, Mr. Hou was the
general manager of Hunan Sunward General Aviation
Company Limited* (# LA ZE:BM AR A F)) responsible
for the daily operations of the company. From December
2017 to the present, Mr. Hou has been the legal
representative and general manager of Guizhou Huang Ping
Qie Lan General Aviation Company Limited* (EM =¥ H#
BAMZEARR AR responsible for the overall operation and
management.

Mr. Hou completed the fighter pilot diploma at the PRC
People's Liberation Army Air Force Fourth Aviation School*
(FERARBHMEZEEOMZEER) in December 1982. He
further obtained a bachelor’s degree in military science from
the Army Staff College* (FEE2REE7) in the PRC in July
1994,

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. SZE So Fan (£#tl), aged 51, is the deputy chief
executive officer of our Group. Ms. Sze joined our Group in
May 1999 and is responsible for overall administration and
human resources management of our Group.

Ms. Sze has over 20 years of experience in the marketing
field. Between March 1998 to April 1999, Ms. Sze worked
as a marketing executive in TFH Technology Co., Ltd., a
company which engages in the trading of engineering
equipment and she was mainly responsible for assisting the
sales and marketing manager for formulation and
implementation of sales and marketing strategy.

Ms. Sze graduated from Minzu University of China (A5 K&
) in June 1991 with a bachelor’s degree in physics.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERSREEE (&)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. KWAN Leung Yu (B8=F), aged 44, is the technology
director of our Group and is responsible for the overall
technical products and supplier relationship management of
our Group. Mr. Kwan has over 20 years of experience in the
engineering field. Mr. Kwan joined our Group in September
1999 as a sales engineer and was promoted to assistant
general manager in April 2004 where he was mainly
responsible for design, tailoring and preparation of technical
proposals of thermal imaging products and services and self-
stabilised imaging related products and services for our
customers. Mr. Kwan obtained his bachelor's degree in
engineering from The University of Hong Kong in December
1998.

Mr. XIA Xiaoming (E#8H), aged 61, is the chief engineer
of our Group. Mr. Xia joined our Group in 2002 and is
responsible for research and development of the products of
our Group. Mr. Xia has over 20 years of experience in the
optoelectronics and general aviation industry. From January
1989 to March 1993, Mr. Xia worked as a teacher in Nanjing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (F R M ZE MR A
E) (formerly known as Nanjing University of Aeronautics (&
FMZE KE)). From 1993 to 1995, Mr. Xia worked as
technical manager in Shenzhen Transportation Machinery
and Electronics Company* (FIIZE#ARE F /2 7)) and was
responsible for research and development of mechanical
products.

Mr. Xia obtained a master’'s degree in engineering, and
doctor's degree in engineering, from Nanjing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics (Fd R=AZEMAARE) (formerly
known as Nanjing University of Aeronautics (B RfinZe AE)
in December 1984 and May 1989, respectively. He further
obtained a master’'s degree in business administration from
Duquesne University in the United States in December
1997.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENEREERE (&)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. LEUNG Chin Ching (RR%2), aged 34, is the company
secretary and financial controller of our Group. Ms. Leung
joined our Group in December 2017 and is primarily
responsible for the secretarial, compliance work and overall
financial and accounting operations of our Group.

Ms. Leung has over 11 years of experience in finance and
accounting. She obtained the bachelor degree of business
administration in accountancy from the City University of
Hong Kong in July 2009. She is admitted as a certified public
accountant of the HKICPA in July 2013.

Note: If there is any inconsistency between the official Chinese name of the PRC
laws or regulations or the PRC Government authorities or the PRC entities and
their English translation, the Chinese version shall prevail. English translations
of official Chinese names are for identification purposes only and are marked
with “*".
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Corporate Governance Report

TERERBE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company (the “Corporate Governance Report”)
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that high
corporate governance standards are essential in providing a
framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

Since the Listing Date, the Company has adopted the
principles and the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
throughout year ended 31 December 2020.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) as set forth in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own securities dealing code to regulate all dealings by
Directors in the securities of the Company and other matters
covered by the Model Code.

Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors and they

have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year under review.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Senior
Management

The Board is the primary decision-making body of the
Company and is responsible for overseeing the Group's
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board
makes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

The Group's senior management is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Group’s businesses and is
responsible for overseeing the general operation, business
development, finance and marketing.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of
three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this Corporate Governance Report, the composition
of the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching (Chairman)

Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. NIU Zhongjie

Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen
Mr. HOU Min
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

BOARD COMPOSITION (Continued)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in
the section headed "Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 26 to 33 of this Annual Report. The relationships
between the members of the Board are also disclosed under
the same section.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching (“Mr. YEUNG"), being the chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”), provides leadership and is
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of
the Board. Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (“Ms. WONG"), being the
chief executive officer, focuses on the Company’s business
development and the daily management and operations. The
segregation of roles of the Chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company aligns with the requirement pursuant
to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the CG Code, it stipulates that non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election and all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment. The Company has
complied with the requirements of the CG Code that all
Directors are appointed for a term of three years. Such
appointment may be terminated earlier by either party giving
to the other not less than three months’ notice in writing.

Pursuant to the Company's articles of association (the
“Articles of Association”), at each AGM one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least one every three years. Accordingly,
Mr. NIU Zhongjie and Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and, being
eligible, offers themselves for re-election.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing more
than one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation in
respect of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of three years unless terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by each independent non-
executive Director concerned or our Company expiring at
the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the audit committee (the "Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees are provided
sufficient resources to perform its duties and, if necessary,
to seek independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company to fulfill their responsibilities. They are also
required to report to the Board after each meeting on their
decisions or recommendations.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since 18
December 2018 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules.
Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. NIU
Zhongjie, Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen and Mr. HOU Min. Ms.
YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen is the chairwoman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditors; (ii) review
the financial statements; (iii) provide material advice in
respect of our financial reporting process; (iv) oversee our
internal control and risk management systems and audit
process; and (v) provide advice and comment to our Board
on matters related to corporate governance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held
four meetings and has performed the following works:

— recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor and the remuneration;

— considered and reviewed the scope of audit work and
monitored its independence;

— reviewed the unaudited accounts, interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2020 and annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2019;

— reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the
Group; and

— reviewed the effectiveness of the financial reporting
system, internal control and risk management systems
and internal audit function of the Group.

In addition, according to our terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Audit Committee also held a meeting with
our external auditor in the absence of the management to
discuss matters relating to the auditor’'s remuneration and
scope of audit works during the year under review.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since
18 December 2018 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules.
Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HOU Min
and Mr. NIU Zhongjie and one executive Director, namely
Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching. Mr. HOU Min is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to (i)
review and make recommendations to our Board on the
terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management
of the Company; (i) assessing performance of Directors; and
(iii) approving the terms of the Directors’ service contracts.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting and has performed the following works:

— reviewed the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and senior management of the Company and
made recommendations to the Board on their specific
packages; and

— reviewed the fees of the independent non-executive
Directors and make recommendations to the Board.

Details of the remuneration payable to each Director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)
Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the

remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was set out below:

EEZEE (A

FHERE (H)

RIEDE T TR ER IS BE-D
HHS

—EFF+ AT HIEFEREREDN
REBEFHOT -

Within the band of ABINFR Number of individuals

A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T & 1,500,000 78 7T 3

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established since 18
December 2018 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. Currently, the Nomination Committee
comprises two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. NIU Zhongjie and Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen and one
executive Director, namely Ms. WONG Kwan Lik. Mr. NIU
Zhongjie is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i)
review the structure, size and composition of our Board; (ii)
identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members; (iii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) review and make
recommendations to the Board on appointment or
reappointment of directors and the management of the
Board succession.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting and has performed the following works:

— reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board
and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors;

— set up the nomination policy of the Company (the
“Nomination Policy”) and reviewed its implementation;

— identified individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

— assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and

— reviewed the Board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and its implementation.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set out
in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, industry
experience, technical and professional skills and/or
qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be
devoted as a director.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates to serve as a
director of the Company, the Nomination Committee would
consider the above criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendations to the Board.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to
implement board diversity and review such objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives. The
Nomination Committee shall review and monitor the
effectiveness of the board diversity of the Board.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board's
composition under diversified perspectives was summarised
as follows:

Undergraduate

Educational Background
HEER AR}

ExecuEive
1T

Designation

v

Gender

31l

Age group
Fc R

Length of service Less than 5 years

DIREE

EEEHESTILBER
EFHEESSEANE  REZB28ERES
EXEBZILEBRRMEZ % E%HE - BFEES
RIS - Fie - ERBEER  TEK
B BRWREERERHER  NE - FE
RAEREZHIRAHER
EYekIEREARRESHNES NBIAR

EERFhEBERN  REZBEREEL
MEFLERAREEREEEKNEZ LM
BB ENFE(ER) o

EEeBERHEAEERUNETESSN
BZLBER WARENZEEE  BRE
HEREERMTERZEEEMNEE - RBREE
EgRENREREFENETENESTL
BB

RAFEREAY  EFSEZTIEAETH
AR T

Postgraduate
HRE

Independent Non-executive

B IETT

Female
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Over 10 years
#BiB10F
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

NOMINATION POLICY

The Group adopted the Nomination Policy on 22 February
2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

Objectives

The Nomination Committee assists the Board in making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors. This policy
provides the key selection criteria and principles of the
Nomination Committee in making any such
recommendations.

Selection Criteria

When making recommendations regarding the appointment
of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall consider a variety of factors including
without limitation the following in assessing the suitability of
the proposed candidate:

(1) Reputation for integrity;

(2)  Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the
business and other relevant sectors relate to the
Company and/or its subsidiaries;

(3) Commitment in respect of sufficient time and attention
to the Company's business;

(4) Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural/educational and professional
background, skills, knowledge and experience;

(5)  The ability to assist and support management and
make significant contributions to the Company’s
success;
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TEERHRE (F)

NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

Selection Criteria (Continued)

(6)

Compliance with the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the
appointment of an independent non-executive Director;
and

Any other relevant factors as may be determined by
the Nomination Committee or the Board from time to
time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or
re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall
be made in accordance with the Articles of Association and
other applicable rules and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

In general, the Board shall have the ultimate responsibility
for all matters relating to the selection, appointment and re-
appointment of Directors.

(1)

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall
convene a meeting and invite nominations of
candidates from Board members (if any), for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may also nominate candidates
for its consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed
candidate to the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
such individual and make recommendations for the
Board's consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the proposed
candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)
Review and Monitoring of the Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
on 22 February 2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed
as below.

The Group is committed to maintaining sufficient resources
and flexibility to meet the Group’s financial and operational
requirements. At the same time, the Company continually
seeks ways to enhance shareholders’ value to ensure
sustainable long-term vyields for shareholders.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company gives priority to
distributing dividend in cash and shares its profits with its
shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be determined
or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account the Group's
financial results, future prospects and other factors, and
subject to:

(1) the Articles of Association;

(2) the applicable restrictions and requirements under the
laws of the Cayman Islands;

(3) any banking or other funding covenants by which the
Company is bound from time to time;

(4) the investment and operating requirements of the
Group; and

(5) any other factors that have material impact on the
Company.
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TEERHRE (F)

DIVIDEND POLICY (Continued)

The Board may consider distributing special dividend to all
shareholders, and the amount of which shall be determined
and approved by the Board at its absolute discretion.

Under the Cayman Islands Companies Act and the Articles
of Association of the Company, all of our shareholders have
equal entitlement to dividends and distributions. The Board
shall have the right to review the Dividend Policy from time
to time as it deems fit according to the financial and
business development requirements of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board would review the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the code
of conduct applicable to employees and Directors, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD MEETINGS

Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Board
meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of
the majority of the Directors, either in person or through
electronic means of communications.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

Notice of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors
at least 14 days in advance while reasonable notice is given
for other Board meetings. Agenda and accompanying board
papers are sent, in full, to all Directors at least 3 days before
the intended date of the regular Board meetings and Board
committees meetings to enable all Directors to make
informed decisions.

Minutes of regular Board meetings and Board committees
meetings are drafted by the company secretary of the
Company (“Company Secretary”) in sufficient detail the
matters considered and decisions reached. Draft and final
versions of minutes of the meetings are sent to all Board
members and Board committee members for their comment
and records, within a reasonable time after the meetings.
Full minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice
by any Director.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and the Board Committees, and the
AGM during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
below:
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Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BTEERY
Audit Remuneration  Nomination

Name of Directors EEpg Board  Committee  Committee  Committee AGM

Exe ENZEE® FMEEe REZEE RREFAS
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching BRELE 55 - n - I
Ms. WONG Kwan Lik E2: ) e 5/5 - - 11 1/1
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai BREEE 5/5 - . - "
Independent Non-Executive BLH#H{TEE

Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie bEETE 5/5 4/4 171 171 i
Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen Gl 5/5 4/4 - 17 1
Mr. HOU Min EREE 5/5 4/4 171 - i
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TEERHRE (F)

BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the chairman has
also met once with all independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors, to discuss various
matters in respect of corporate governance of the Company.

In addition, according to the terms of reference of Audit
Committee, the members of the Audit Committee have met
with the auditors in the absence of the management to
discuss matters relating to the audit fees and scope of audit
works during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of the responsibilities as a Director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of Director’'s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

In accordance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors, namely
Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching, Ms. WONG Kwan Lik, Mr. YEUNG
Chun Tai, Mr. NIU Zhongjie, Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen and
Mr. HOU Min have confirmed that they had complied with
code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code and details are set out
below:

ESNHEERERE (A)

BE_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE =8
BEEREGRELE  TBHALTE  BIRKEL
o FEE A BRER T A REIRTERE
REEEETLETRATRNEEA6.5K -
FHIEESIT -

Types of Trainings

Directors 5= (See Remarks)
52 3187
(REHR)

Executive Directors BITESE

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching Hfmia et A B

Ms. WONG Kwan Lik FREH L A, B

Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai IR A A B

Independent Non-Executive BYFHITEE

Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie BB A A B

Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen BRIt A B

Mr. HOU Min IR L A B

Remarks: a2

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEHE R eEk SmE

B: reading journals, updates, articles and/or materials, etc. B: WEBT - - XERS IS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

BEREX
ESHMBRR2EE

SEENTEHBRBATERRER S ERRR
AEBEGEVBHRERREMABVHRENE
fE o
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the Financial
Statements (Continued)

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2020, the Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, the accounts is prepared on a going concern
basis and they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements is included in the
“Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 78 to 85 of this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY AND
REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
appointed Ernst & Young as the external auditor. Details of
the fees paid or payable in respect of the audit and non-audit
services provided by Ernst & Young for the year ended 31

LEVEAC )
ESHMBRR2EE(R)

RREEBE_T_TF+_A=t—HILFE
MRR B EEMR  BLEMA KRB JRE
BRRERAERSE  BEY TAEFAEAE R
REFEE LR SIRERRBNEMNERT
FEE = MFBER

BB BRI 3R A0 B R B (3 e B
BN AFEREF 78285 A MY [ B L X BAD

HE] -

¥ B8 B Y BB 5. I 38

REBE-T-TF+_A=+—HLEFE &
RARELKEFT R BRSNS AZERED - &
ETTE+_A=+-BULFERLTKE
SHEMEISFTR M ERT MR IR M E

December 2020 are set out in the table below: ERNERAMNGFERNTE
Fee paid/
Services Rendered 2R RS payable
21/
EAEAR
HK$°000
FET
Audit services: FiTIRT
— Annual audit and related services — FEE MBERE 1,280
Non-audit services: FEEETARTS -
— Agreed-upon procedures with respect to — BT HmENHERERF
interim report and other professional N HAth 25 3 AR 75
services 280
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has undertaken the overall responsibility for
overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an on-going basis and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually in order to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders and the assets of the Group.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives and
ensuring that the Group has established and maintained
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee to review
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls of the Group. Based on its review, the Audit
Committee advises the Board on the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems,
including the identification and monitoring of the risks, the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting functions. The management has also
been delegated to design, implement and maintain the
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

B o 3 I P R4
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

> ’FQ\Aiﬁﬂ: (lnﬁ)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (Continued)

Risk management is curial to promote good corporate
governance. Our risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk control and review. The
management is entrusted with duties to identify, evaluate,
respond, monitor and communicate risks to the head of the
respective business units or department to enforce the
remediation. Risks are assessed by our management and
reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board based on (i)
the probability that the risk will occur; and (i) the severity of
the impact on the Group. According to the likelihood of
occurrence and the impact of the risk, our Group implement
the risk management strategies by avoiding the risk, sharing
or transferring the risk, mitigating the risk, and accepting the
risk.

To further strengthen the risk management and internal
control of the Group, the Company appointed external
advisers to undertake the internal audit function and perform
an annual review of the internal control systems of the
Group. The external advisers evaluate the Group's risk
management and internal control systems by reviewing the
material controls, including financial, operation and
compliance. The rotation basis would be applied to
operations with similar risk associated so as to enhance the
efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit function.
Review results and the recommendations in the form of
written report are submitted to the Audit Committee for
discussion and review. Follow up actions will be taken up by
the management of the Group to ensure all significant
control activities are properly in place within the Group and
findings previously identified have been properly resolved.

The Company has conducted annual review on the
effectiveness and efficiency of the Groups risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2020 and the management has confirmed that
there is no significant deficiency and weakness on the
internal control system has been identified by the external
advisers. During the year under review, both the Board and
the Audit Committee satisfied and confirmed that the
Group's risk management and internal control systems were
effective and adequate.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for handling
the dissemination of inside information, the Group has
adopted a policy on the disclosure of inside information (the
“Inside Information Policy”) in order to comply with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") and the Listing
Rules. According to the Inside information Policy, the
Company has taken appropriate measures to identify inside
information and preserve its confidentiality until proper
dissemination via the electronic publication system operated
by the Stock Exchange. Senior management of the Group
must take all reasonable measures to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent the leakage of inside information
of the Company from time to time. They must also promptly
bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside
information to the attention of the Board accordingly for
taking the appropriate action promptly.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms. LEUNG Chin Ching, who is
also the financial controller of the Group, is a full-time
employee of the Company. Her biography is set out on page
33 of this Annual Report in the section of “Directors and
Senior Management”.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. LEUNG Chin
Ching has confirmed that she has complied with all the
qualifications and training requirements as required under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings (the
“EGM”) by the Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, the
Board may whenever it thinks fit call EGM. EGM shall also
be convened on the requisition of any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at a General Meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 316, 3/F., Lakeside 1,
Phase Two, Hong Kong Science Park, Pak Shek Kok, New
Territories, Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and
the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general
meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put forward enquiries to the
Board at general meeting or send written enquiries to the
Company for the attention of the Company Secretary at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit
316, 3/F., Lakeside 1, Phase Two, Hong Kong Science Park,
Pak Shek Kok, New Territories, Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a shareholders’
communication policy on 18 December 2018. Such policy is
monitored and reviewed by the Board on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness. The Company considers that
effective communication with shareholders is essential for
enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of
the Group's business performance and strategies. The
Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other
general meetings. At the forthcoming AGM, Directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) will be available to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at “www.peiport.com”. Through its
website, the Company provides shareholders with corporate
information, corporate governance practice, interim and
annual reports, announcements, circulars and etc. The
Company will also update the website information from time
to time to inform the shareholders and investors of the
latest development of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no significant change
in the Company’s constitution documents. An up to date
version of the Articles of Association is available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Board of Directors is pleased to present their report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries were principally engaged in the provision of (i)
thermal imaging products and services; (ii) self-stabilised
imaging products and services; and (iii) general aviation
products and services. An analysis of the principal activities
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 is
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this Annual Report.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, an indication of likely future developments
in the Group’s businesses and other relevant information,
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
set out on pages 6 to 9 and pages 10 to 25 of this Annual
Report, respectively. Such discussion forms part of this
"Report of the Directors”.

In addition, discussion on the Group's environmental policies
and performance, compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and the key relationships with the Company’'s
key stakeholders which have a significant impact on the
Group are set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability
of the environment and is committed to becoming an
environmentally friendly corporation. Details of our
environmental, social and governance policies and
performance during the year ended 31 December 2020 shall
be disclosed in a standalone “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” to be published within three months
after the publication of this Annual Report on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (A)

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2020
are set out in the financial statements on pages 86 to 88.
The Board are pleased recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.35 cents (2019: Nil) per share for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 22 June 2021, subject to the shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming AGM to be held on Thursday, 10
June 2021. It is expected that the Proposed Final Dividend
will be paid on or before Thursday, 8 July 2021. The
Proposed Final Dividend shall be declared and distributed in
Hong Kong dollars.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited results and the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out on page 2 of this Annual
Report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
1 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 24
to the financial statements.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debenture during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESETHE (E)

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in “Share Option Scheme” as set out in
this section, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December
2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note
34 to the financial statements and the consolidated
statements of changes in equity. The distributable reserve
of the Company as at 31 December 2020 was
HK$76,229,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, sales to the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 42.7% of the
total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 15.7%.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases from
the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 81.0% of
the total purchases for the year and purchase from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 41.5%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (A)

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this Annual Report
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching (Chairman)
Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie
Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen
Mr. HOU Min

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee has duly reviewed the independence
of each of these directors. The Company considered that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 26 to 33 of
this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement
with our Company for a term of three years and are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms.
The term of the service contracts may be renewed in
accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable rules of the Listing Rules.

Save as discussed above, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not terminable by employing company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESETHE (E)

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and chief
executive and the five highest paid employees of the Group
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements of
this Annual Report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain in or about the execution of their duty
in their offices. The Company has maintained appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to provide
appropriate coverage for the Directors and other officers of
the Group throughout the year and are currently in force.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport Alpha Ltd. ("Peiport
Alpha"), each being the controlling shareholder (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholder(s)”), have entered into a deed of
non-competition dated 18 December 2018 (in favour of the
Company (the “Deed of Non-Competition”). Details of the
Deed of Non-Competition was set out in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the
Prospectus. The Company has received confirmations from
Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport Alpha of their
compliance with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition.
Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport Alpha declared that
they have fully complied with the Deed of Non-Competition
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the confirmations from the Controlling
Shareholders and confirmed that up to the date of this
Annual Report, all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition have been complied with by Mr. YEUNG, Ms.
WONG and Peiport Alpha.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (A)

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, our executive
Director, Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai (“Mr. CT YEUNG") held 70%
of the issued share capital of Yoom System Inc. (“Yoom”)
which is principally engaged in the provision of thermal
imaging and related products and services (“Products”) in
Canada and the United States. Yoom has also entered into
an agreement with Peiport Aero pursuant to which Yoom
will purchase Products from Peiport Aero at cost plus basis
and such purchases shall not exceed 5% of the percentage
ratios (other than profits ratio) of the Company and
HK$3,000,000 per year. During the year ended 31 December
2020, Yoom has not made any purchases from the Group.

In relation to his shareholding interests in Yoom, Mr. CT
YEUNG has provided an undertaking to the Company (the
“CT YEUNG Undertaking”) that Yoom will (i) not operate its
business outside of Canada and the United States; (ii) in the
event that Mr. CT YEUNG receives any business opportunity
that relates to the business carried on by the Group from
time to time and such business is outside Canada and the
United States, Mr. CT YEUNG or Yoom will refer such
business opportunity to the Group; and (iii) in the event the
Group decides to expand its business of sales of Products to
the Canada and the United States, the Company will have
the discretion on (a) Yoom or Mr. CT YEUNG to cease
purchase of any Products from the Group for its sale in
Canada and the United States; and (b) Mr. CT YEUNG wvill
transfer his shareholding in Yoom to the Group.

Based on the CT YEUNG Undertaking, Mr. CT YEUNG has
also provided to the Company a written confirmation on
annual basis in respect of his compliance of the terms of the
CT YEUNG Undertaking. The independent non-executive
Directors of the Company have also reviewed such
confirmation and confirmed that up to the date of this
Annual Report, all the undertakings under the CT YEUNG
Undertaking have been complied by Mr. CT YEUNG.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESETHE (E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at the date of this Annual Report, the following Directors
and chief executive of the Company had or were deemed to
have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:

EERTRARRKRSG  HAEROR
EEEPNERERAR

RAFERERERH - THRARESERITHA
BRARAHEEAREEE(EERFFR
HIE RGBSR XV E#B) 2 Bdn ~ MR KB E
PHEB IR SEE (VRIEFESF MG GRIE
XVEBE 7 M8 BPAF & AR R M B X i 2 4
DIAR (BRBEEFREEZFRAE GO 2%
EREREFIER/EAZERRAR) + K
(i) IRI5 78 7 K B G 16151 35 352 IR 7R FC #R N RX 16k
BIFrte 2 Bt 2 e SOXR ¢ (i) RIBF
ETREMEARNRA] LB R e sk R

Ordinary Shares of the Company: AT ZEBRRM
Number of ordinary Approximate
Capacity/ shares and percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest class of securities shareholding (%)
EERNEE
Exps 5% REMtE K& 58 BFEREBAE D (%)
Mr. YEUNG® Interest of a controlled 300,000,000 Shares (L)™ 75%®
corporation
Bkt REhEE S 300,000,000 A& A £ (L)@
Ms. WONG® Interest of spouse 300,000,000 Shares (L) 75%?
Ttw FoiBtEsS 300,000,000 A& & £ (L)
Notes: B E
1. The letter “L" denotes to the person with long position in the shares of the 1. FR L] BZALTRARBRRD ([ARHD 1) BiFE -

Company (the “Share(s)").

2. The calculation is based on the total number of 400,000,000 Shares in issue
after completion of the global offering.

3. Our Company is owned as to approximately 756% by Peiport Alpha. The entire
issued share capital of Peiport Alpha is owned as to 70% and 30% by Mr.
YEUNG and Ms. WONG, respectively. Ms. WONG is the spouse of Mr. YEUNG
and therefore each of Ms. WONG and Mr. YEUNG is deemed to be interested
in Shares held by Peiport Alpha pursuant to the SFO. Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG
and Peiport Alpha together are a group of Controlling Shareholders of our
Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (A)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

Ordinary Shares of an Associated Corporation —
Peiport Alpha:

Number of ordinary

EERTRARRKRSG  HEROR
EEETNEERAR (&)

MHEEE — REMBEEZZEBRRMD

Approximate

Capacity/ shares and percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest class of securities shareholding (%)
EBERNHE
Exps 5% RENtE K& %585 BFREBAE D (%)
Mr. YEUNG® Beneficial owner 10 Shares (L) 100%
Bk Ba A A 10 R A7 (L)
Ms. WONG® Interest of spouse 10 Shares (L) 100%?
Frzt® BC (B = 10 AR 17 (L)
Notes: B 5

1. The letter “L" denotes to the person with long position in the shares.

2. The calculation is based on the total number of 10 shares of Peiport Alpha in
issue.

3. The entire issued share capital of Peiport Alpha is owned as to 7 shares and 3
shares by Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG respectively. Since Ms. WONG is the
spouse of Mr. YEUNG, pursuant to the SFO, they are deemed to be interested
in the entire issued share capital of Peiport Alpha and the Shares held by
Peiport Alpha.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Annual
Report, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESETHE (E)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’
and chief executive's interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” in this section, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2020 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or
underlying shares in, or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the "Connected Transactions” as set
out in this section and the related party transactions
disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements of this
Annual Report, no Directors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors nor their respective associates had an interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) has been conditionally adopted on 18
December 2018.

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
any person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants (the “Eligible Participants”), to take up options
to subscribe for the shares:

(1) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(2) any directors (including executive, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) of
our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(3) any advisers (professional or otherwise), consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents to our Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(4) related entities who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to our Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing
Date and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme (i.e. 17 December 2028).
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESETHE (E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 shares, representing
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the Listing
Date and as at the date of this Annual Report. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options granted to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding options) within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any grant or further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. A grant of share options
under the Share Option Scheme to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the option). In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, which
would result in the shares issued and to be issued, upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding), to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (A)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted on or
before the relevant acceptance date upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that such a
period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of offer
of the share options and subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised. The exercise price of the share options
shall be not less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer
of the share options, which must be a date on which the
Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in securities;
(ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
before the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company's share as at the date of offer.

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and
is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions Eligible Participants had or may have made to
the Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide Eligible
Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in our
Company with the view to achieving the following
objectives: (i) motivate Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (ii)
attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going business
relationship with Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the
Group.

No options had been granted or agreed to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme during the year and up to the date
of this Annual Report. The Company did not have any
outstanding share options, warrants and convertible
instruments into shares as at 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this Annual Report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESETHE (E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As of the date of this Annual Report, so far as was known to
any Director, or chief executive of our Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests and/or short positions in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to our Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRAR®D - HERG R EEE
RS

RAFEREBH  BARRESTRITRAE
PR AT AL (RRREERITHRARIRIN)
RARBRAD - AERRR D N BAE R A AR
BREBRBESFMPEGRAIEXVEE2R3
D EARAARE R FR R R R, SOK
BEARBRIERE 7 K& BB (D] 5 336 15RE
BB BRMATREnER R SAR

Number of ordinary

Approximate

Name of Capacity/ shares and percentage of

shareholder Nature of interest class of securities shareholding (%)
ZRRNEE

BREEEB B EmtE RFEZER BFRBAE 2L (%)

Peiport Alpha® Beneficial owner 300,000,000 Shares (L)™ 75%%?

1 B ERA® EnEAA 300,000,000 f& A% 17 (L)1

Mr. YEUNG® Interest in a controlled 300,000,000 Shares (L)™ 75%%?

corporation

BEED TG EE S 300,000,000 A& A% 17 (L)1

Ms. WONG® Interest of spouse 300,000,000 Shares (L) 75%?

Tt Fie B s 300,000,000 A& A& (L)

Notes: B

1. The letter “L" denotes to the entity’s with long position in the securities. 1. FEILI EZBEBRNESNTR -

2. The calculation is based on the total number of 400,000,000 Shares in issue 2. ER 2RI E TR IE B BT D 4 20400,000,000 A%

after completion of the global offering.

3. Our Company is owned as to approximately 75% by Peiport Alpha. The entire
issued share capital of Peiport Alpha is owned as to 70% and 30% by Mr.
YEUNG and Ms. WONG, respectively. Ms. WONG is the spouse of Mr. YEUNG
and therefore each of Ms. WONG and Mr. YEUNG is deemed to be interested
in Shares held by Peiport Alpha pursuant to the SFO. Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG
and Peiport Alpha together are a group of Controlling Shareholders of our
Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (A)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Annual
Report, none of the substantial or significant shareholders or
other persons, other than the Directors and chief executive
of the Company whose interests are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” in
this section, had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than the employment contracts,
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions entered into by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are disclosed in note 29 to
the financial statements. These transactions were conducted
in accordance with terms as agreed between us and the
respective related parties. Our Directors confirm that all
related party transactions during the year ended 31
December 2020 were conducted on normal commercial
terms that were reasonable and in the interest of our Group
as a whole. Save as disclosed in below sections of this
Annual Report, there were no other connected transactions
or non-exempted continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules as at the date of this Annual Report. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESETHE (E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
connected transactions which were subject to reporting and
announcement requirements but are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

(A) Connected Transactions

On 1 November 2019 and 5 January 2020, renewed
leased agreements (A) and (B) were entered into
between Guangzhou Peiport Sijing Optoelectronics
System Limited (“Peiport Guangzhou”) (as tenant), and
Ms. WONG (as landlord) to renew the leases of
properties for a further term of two years.

On 31 December 2020, Peiport Aero and Peiport
Guangzhou, indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, as tenants, entered into the renewed lease
agreements (C) to (G) with the Landlords to renew the
leases of properties for a further term of two years.

Details of the renewed lease agreements (together, the
“"Renewed Lease Agreements”, and each the
“Renewed Lease Agreement”) are set out below:

BHEXS

MRAFE  AEEFTLATNRETRERAE
MEBRF R ETE Y BIRALERENRER

(A) BEXRS

RZE-NF+—A—BRZZT_FTF
—ARBE BNEFEREXERGAR
RE([REEM]) EREF)EELL
(EREF)FITULEBEHERREA K
(B) - AT EAREINE B AF -

RZZB-ZZF+-—A=+—0  AQ7A
] 42 2 K Y 8 2 R A% 7 A B 15 R FE M
(EREP) BEIUKEEREHH
(CVE(G) A ERRBINEERSF -

FRKERAHE S (BE [KEEHAE
il SR IKREEHEEHZ])
HEBHEIIT -

Renewed
Lease Area of Annual rent
Agreement  Date of lease agreement  Landlord Tenant Location of property property  Term payable ~ Use of property
EEAE EEHHRH E£3 #E ES S NEER B BHFE WERR
i
(A) 1 November 2019 Ms. WONG Peiport Guangzhou  Unit 1102, Block C, Hesheng Jingguang Centre, 192sq.m.  Period of two years RMB172,800  Office
No. 11 Tangyan Road, Xi'an Hi-tech Industries commencing from
Development Zone, Yantat District, Xi'an, 1 November 2019
Shaanxi Province, the PRC
E-NET-A-B IRt REBM PEREL AT TRARRERNANEXFLE 1RTAR ZE-nEt-A-B  ARBI80T HER
ERA N RREREDLCEINE RAHRE
B) 5 January 2020 Ms. WONG Peiport Guangzhou  Unit 2301, Office Block 1, Jinniu Wanda Plaza, 276.64 sq.m.  Period of two years RMB215,784  Office
No. 118 Renmin North Road, 2nd Section, commencing from
Jinniu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, the PRC 19 January 2020
ZR-EF-A1R Ixt RN PR ER BT R RARIE 1185 7664 TAR ZEITE-ATAR ARBISTMAT HER
SHEEEARTRIENNE ERERE
(C) 15 December 2020 Peiport Scientific ~ Peiport Aero Room 1301, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, ~ 156.12 sq.m.  Period of two years HK$600,000  Warehouse, system
Taikoo Place, Hong Kong commencing from integration and service
1 January 2021 centre
CECEECATRER BERE fEbi BEAGHERBORERFLI0NE 186.12% 5% —E--E-F-A 600000ET 2B FREAR
EREmE B
D) 15 December 2020 Peiport Scientific  Peiport Aero Room 1302, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, ~ 159.23 sq.m.  Period of two years HK$600,000  Warehouse, system
Taikoo Place, Hong Kong commencing from integration and service
1 January 2021 centre
ZEZERTCATRA O GEDE REMA ERAGHERRNFERPL 1302 15908Fh% —E--F-F-R 600000ET 2B FHEAR
EREmE B
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
ESEHRE (E)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BERS (&)

(A) Connected Transactions (Continued) (A) BEERS (&)

Renewed
Lease Area of Annual rent
Agreement  Date of lease agreement  Landlord Tenant Location of property property  Term payable  Use of property
REERE REGHERR E£3 #E DR NEER B EHER NxRR
i
) 15 December 2020 Peiport Scientific  Peiport Aero Room 1307, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, ~ 158.29 sq.m. ~ Period of two years HK$600,000  Warehouse, system
Taikoo Place, Hong Kong commencing from integration and service
1 January 2021 centre
ZEICEECATER BEDE BERA BENGHERBNORERT L1307 18829 % —E--4-f-A B00000AT AE: ZEBAR
RABME Ty
(F) 15 December 2020 Peiport Scientific ~ Peiport Aero Car Parking Space, No. P18 on 1st Floor, 11.76 sq.m.  Period of two years HKS50,400  Car parking space
Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, commencing from
Taikoo Place, Hong Kong 1 January 2021
ZECEETCATRR O GERG e BEAEHERB0FERTL1EPISREL N6Fpk —F--F-F-H 504007 FEfL
RRBmE
6] 15 December 2020 Mr. YEUNG Peiport Guangzhou  Unit 2523, Wuyang Xincheng Plaza, 13955 sq.m.  Period of two years RMB167,460  Office
No.111 Siyou New Road, Yuexiu District, commencing from
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, the PRC 1 January 2021
CRCRETORTRE BRE BEEM TEERARNTHARSAIEI 1S 10856 5% —E--4-f-A ARE1674607T HER
B BRE EREmE

RENR-_ZFT-NF-A—-BERNEE
MHRELEN(FEMBHRELR ] H

According to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") 16 “Leases” which has come into effect

on 1 January 2019, the Group is required to recognise
the value of the right-of-use assets on its statement of
financial position in connection with the Renewed
Lease Agreements, these transactions will be regarded
as acquisition of assets by the Group pursuant to the
Listing Rules. The aggregate values of the right-of-use
assets to be recognised by the Group under the
Renewed Lease Agreements were estimated to be
approximately HK$4,685,800, being the present value
of the aggregate lease payments using the rate
applicable at the commencement date of the Renewed
Lease Agreements in accordance with HKFRS 16 as
discounted using a discount rate which is equivalent to
the incremental borrowing rate. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

1655 [HE] - AEBEAREMBEKRE
MECEEHEWEEREAEEERE
B RELMHR  ZEXHBEERE
REBKBEE FAEBRELEER
ERHETERNERRBEERAM
%7/ 4,685,8008 7T + BMZRE B %
EREBE 16 FEACEEREHRAE
BEMERALRFEAENRBEER
B WHABEERIEEERFEARIR
REHE - FREEENHBANRERE
ETIRITE o
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE (&)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(A) Connected Transactions (Continued)

(B)

Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG are our Controlling
Shareholders and executive Directors, while Peiport
Scientific is an associate of our Controlling
Shareholders. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Lease Agreements will
constitute connected transactions for our Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Given that Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport
Scientific under the Renewed Lease Agreements (A) to
(G) are connected persons, the Company has
aggregated such transactions under the Renewed
Lease Agreements (A) to (G). As one or more of the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the estimated
aggregate value of the right-of-use assets to be
recognised by the Group under the Renewed Lease
Agreements (A) to (G) are more than 0.1% and less
than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the
Renewed Lease Agreements (A) to (G) are subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Prior to the entering into of the above Renewed Lease
Agreements, our Group has entered into a number of
lease agreement (together, the “Lease Agreements”,
and each the “Lease Agreement”) with the connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) in our ordinary
and usual course of business, which constitute
continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules upon our Listing.

PEIPORTHOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUALREPORT 2020
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (A)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions

(B) HEBEXS (&)

BEXS (&)

(Continued)
Details of these continuing connected transactions of REENZERFEBER FOFIBRT
our Group are set out below: wmr
Maximum
Lease Date of annual rent
Agreement lease agreement Landlord Tenant Connected relationship Location of property Areaof property  Term payable  Use of property
EEGE  REREeS 53 #F BEga et AR it EfiEEFE  NEAR
A 1 November 2019 Ms. WONG Peiport Guangzhou Ms. WONG is our Controling Unit 1102, Block C, 192sq.m. Period of two years RMB172800  Office
Shareholder and executive Hesheng Jingguang Centre, commencing from
Director No. 11 Tangyan Road, 1 November 2019
X'an Hitech Industries
Development Zone,
Yantat District, Xian,
Shaanxi Province,
the PRC
ZIhET-A-B Iht BN IntRARRRRAGES HERELRZTRAE  1927AR “ENET-A-RR ARBI80T  HER
EREiiiEsREe AfRE
BRI FRERERD
CENNE
B 8 January 2018 Ms. WONG Peiport Guangzhou Ms. WONG s our Controling Unit 2301, Office 2766 sq.m. Period of two years RMB215,784  Office
Shareholder and executive Block 1, Jinniu Wanda Plaza, commencing from
Director No. 118 Renmin North Road, 19 January 2018
Ind Section, Jinniu District,
Chengdu, Sichuan Province,
the PRC
ZE\F-FAR BRE BN IRtAERRRRAES HED/I%RET 66T Ak 2-\E-AThAR ARB25BIT B3R
S4E-R BERE
ARt 1185
SYEEES
ERRIEBNE
C 18 December 2018 Peiport Scientific Peiport Aero Peiport Scientific is owned as Room 1301, 156.12 sqm. Period commencing HKS600,000  Warehouse, system
1070% and 30% by Mr. YEUNG ~ Westlands Centre, from the Listing Date and integration and
and Ms. WONG, respectively. 20 Westlands Road, up o 31 December 2020 service centre
Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG are ~ Taikoo Place,
our Controling Sharefolders Hong Kong
and executive Directors
ZRNETIATIR BEME i ) 156,12 Ak BITAHEE-ZC%E B00000ET  BF - EEEAR
ERT0%R0%  BELR tZRZt-ALEE il
InThARRERAES
D 18 December 2018 Peiport Scientific Peiport Aero Peiport Scientific is owned as Room 1302, 159.23 sqm. Period commencing HKS600,000  Warehouse, system
1070% and 30% by Mr. YEUNG ~ Westlands Centre, from the Listing Date ntegration and
and Ms. WONG, respectively. 20 Westiands Road, and up to 31 December service centre
Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONGare ~ Taikoo Place, 2020
our Controling Sharefolders Hong Kong
and executive Directors
ZE-N\ETATNR REME R BRUEANERALRINT  EEARY 1593 5% hIMAHEE-3-%F 800000%T  BE - RABAR
FRTNR0%BEER  EWE0E ToAST-ELEEE iy
ThrAARRERAES  EROL
1302%
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESETHE (E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions

BHEXS (&)

(B) HEBMEXZ (H)

(Continued)
Maximum
Lease Date of annual rent
Agreement  lease agreement Landlord Tenant Connected relationship Location of property Areaof property  Term payable  Use of property
EEGE REREeS E£3 #F BERA LESE AR it EfiBREE  NEAR
3 18 December 2018 Peiport Scientific Peiport Aero Peiport Scientific is owned as Room 1307, 158.29sqm. Period commencing HKS600,000  Warehouse, system
1070% and 30% by Mr. YEUNG ~ Westlands Centre, from the Listing Date integration and
and Ms. WONG, respectively. 20 Westlands Road, and up to 31 December service centre
Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG are ~ Taikoo Place, 2020
our Controling Shareholders Hong Kong
and executive Directors
ZE-N\ETCATAR REME R REMEANIBBRERTAT  BAKEH 15829T A% : : 800000 AR ZABAR
BEN%GRAN%G - BEER  ERENE s it
IntAnRERRGEE  EHRL
1307%
F 23 June 2019 Peiport Scientific Peiport Aero Peiport Scientific is owned as Car Parking Space 1176 s4.m. Period commencing HK$50,400  Car parking space
1070% and 30% by Mr. YEUNG ~ No. P18 on 1st Floar, from 1 July 2019
and Ms. WONG, respectively. ~ Westlands Centre, and up to 31 Decernber
Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG are 20 Westlands Road, 2020
our Controling Shareholders Taikoo Place,
and executive Directors Hong Kong
CE-NERACTER BRME i ENEANERALRTIRT  EBEARY 176F7% S040ET  REN
BRI0%R0%BEER  EWH0E
INTARRRRRGTES  EROL
1EPIgEEEN
6 9 January 2018 Mr. YEUNG Peiport Guangzhou Mr. YEUNG s our Controling Unit 2523, 139.55sq.m. Period of three years Renminbi~ Office
Shareholder and executive Wuyang Xincheng Plaz, commencing from ("RMB)
Director No.111 Siyou New Road, 1 January 2018 159,600
Yuexiu Distrit,
Guangzhov,
Guangdong Province,
the PRC
ZE-\E-fAR BRE BN BRERERRRRANES hEEREENT 105 T A% -\ E-f-AE ARE B3R
HAEF BEZE (TAR%])
EHERING 15960070
i vk H
H 9 March 2017 Ms. WONG Beijing Peiport Jingdu Ms. WONG s our Controling Flat 2-7 on level 121 2354550m. Period of five years RMB360000  Office
Technology Limited Shareholder and executive Block 1, Yuetan Mansion, commencing from
(“Peiport Bejjng) Director No. 2 Yuetan North Street, 12 March 2017
Xicheng District, Bejing,
the PRC
ZI-tEZANA Int [REERANEERAT IRTARRBRRHES RESRTEAR BoTARRK S e gl AREG000T  #ER
[ i3] RENE BERF
RERE-R
18272
9 March 2017 Ms. WONG Peiport Beiing Ms. WONG is our Controling Flat 2-8 on level 121 12356 sq.m. Period of five years RMB357,600  Office
Shareholder and executive Block 1, Yuetan Mansion, commencing from
Director No. 2 Yuetan North Street, 12 March 2017
Xicheng District, Bejing,
the PRC
TEtEZRAR BRE fFR IntAARERRAGES PEERTEAR 15F%  E-HEZATIAE ABB®T60T  H3R
RELEE AERE
REREE
1828%
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (A)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was
no material change in the Lease Agreements. There
was also no termination of the Lease Agreements, nor
was there any failure to terminate when the restrictions
that led to the adoption of the Lease Agreements are
removed. Lease Agreements (A) to (G) are renewed
which constituted connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. Please refer to the sub-section headed
“Connected Transactions — (A) Connected
Transactions” in this Annual Report for details. Lease
Agreements (H) and (I) will expire on 11 March 2022.
Since Lease Agreements (H) and (I) are entered into by
the Group before the adoption of HKFRS 16, Lease
Agreements (H) and (l) have been classified as
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The annual cap for the year ending
31 December 2021 and the three months ending 31
March 2022 under Lease Agreements (H) and (I) is the
maximum amount of rent payable by the Group during
the respective period, which is RMB717,600 and
RMB179,400, respectively.

The aggregate of the maximum annual rent payable by
the Group under all of the Lease Agreements described
above is approximately HK$3.8 million which shall
constitute the maximum amount of rent payable by us
to Peiport Scientific, Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG for
the year ended 31 December 2020, respectively. In
relation to the Lease Agreements for the properties in
Hong Kong, our Group was not charged any rentals in
respect of our usage thereof before the entering into of
the Lease Agreements for the properties in Hong Kong.

Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG are our Controlling
Shareholders and executive Directors, while Peiport
Scientific is an associate of our Controlling
Shareholders. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Lease Agreements will
constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Since each of applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) as defined under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules for the Lease Agreements is expected to
be more than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual
basis, the transactions contemplated under the Lease
Agreements are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement but will be exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BHEXS (&)

(B)

FEREXZ (&)

REZ2-_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—HIF
B -HEnZUEEAEH - HEHE
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B EENKNETMRBEBBETHEERS -
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AEERRNE B R EERE 1657
AR M B E R (H) &) - i E 7 (H)
FNESERA EMAREIMAZTETH
SEMERS - BERERHZ H &)
BE_E-_—F+-_R=1+—HI=EE
FEE-_ZE-_—_HF=ZA=+—HIE=1
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESETHE (E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules,
the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Ernst &
Young, the Company's external auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Financial statements and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditors’ Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by
the HKICPA. Ernst & Young issued an unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no
connected transactions or continuing connected
tractions which fell to be disclosed in accordance with
the provisions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in relation to the disclosure of connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions.

REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the remuneration policy for
employees of the Group is determined based on their
responsibilities, qualifications, performance, experience and
seniority which are reviewed periodically.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (A)

REMUNERATION POLICIES (Continued)

Compensation of Directors of the Group is reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, approved by the Board and
authorised by the shareholders at the AGM of the Company,
which is based on the Group's performance and the
Directors’ respective contributions to the Group.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” on pages 65 to 67 of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by our
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
section on pages 34 to 55 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the date of this Annual Report, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the
public.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event after the reporting period are
set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM for
the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the independent

auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B R BENRE

Ernst & Young T K EE A S AT Tel E5%: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower EBMIEREE1SE Fax {5 5:+852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue S AE224E www.ey.com

EY=x

To the shareholders of Peiport Holdings Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Central, Hong Kong

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Peiport Holdings Ltd. (the “Company") and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 176, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B 2 RET RS ()

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RRNER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BREREE

HRELZSE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
EENERNEEEREXSIE

Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables
B 5 WA R E W E 1R 09 6 (B 7

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of HK$83,683,000, after making a provision of
HK$1,770,000. The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide impairment for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
under HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime ECLs
for all trade and bills receivables. To measure the ECLs,
trade and bills receivables are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due, and the
calculation of ECLs is based on the historical observable
default rates and forward-looking information. The ECLs of
trade and bills receivables were HK$1,770,000 as at 31
December 2020.

RZZEZZTF+ZA=+—0  BESE{EHEE1,770,000%8 T
BE 5 EINGIE K EIEIRS83,683,000/8 L - EEBEHEMARMIE
HEBVBHRELEAEZIRTHEMEESE(FEHEEEE D
IRRERE  ZIEATRABEE S RBGRIEREWRERERAZ A
HBERE - ERHEEEE  EZRKFBERERZERDR
BHEEERRFHERAMHAE E  MEHREEBBEDERBR
AERENERERAETEERGE RZETF+_A=1+—H
BB 5 EUGKIA K B RIETEE 518 /1,770,000 /87T ©

We focused on this area because it required a high level of
management judgement and estimation and the amounts
involved were material.
EEMEIZHEBETENAEZTESKTINEREB AN KA Mk
SREEK o

The Group's disclosures of the trade and bills receivables
are included in notes 3 and 17 to the financial statements.
EXEBEYHESRRFEREREENFEEH NP HFREWTIR
17 -
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We assessed the Group's internal control
over the credit control of trade and bills
receivables. We also reviewed
management’s assessment regarding
the recoverability of the Group’s trade
and bills receivables by evaluating the
assumptions and methodologies of the
ECL model, obtaining evidence which
included background search and review
of repayment history, checking the
accuracy of ageing of trade and bills
receivables and forward-looking
information, and recalculating ECLs. We
also assessed the disclosures related to
trade and bills receivables in the
consolidated financial statements.
EEFE EEEYE S RKEIERERRE
EEERINNEIES - EE N ATEREEE
BEANBEETE  ERZEBR(BESSEH
EREHERGCE)  BEBIHEKFIERE
WERIRRER RATIE BRI BRI RENTE
REEEEE  BEUBHEREN BE5EHE
5 WE W SR I8 K JiE W 2= 48 #) BT Uk [ 1M 3E 1T Y 5T
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BEREXSE

HREZSE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter
EENERNEEEREXEIR

Allowance for inventory obsolescence
HREFEREE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had inventories of
HK$70,018,000, after making allowance for inventory obsolescence
of HK$2,277,000. Allowance for inventory obsolescence is based
on management’'s judgement using the available facts and
circumstances, including, but not limited to, the inventories’ own
physical conditions, their market selling prices and estimated
selling costs of the inventories.

RZEZZTEF+ZA=+T—H  BEEBELEIREFTERHE
2,277,000 L& A7 E 70,018,000 T - REFEREHENE
BEEAAGEERER(BFEIERAFERGHYIEMRRI - H
M5 EERFERMETHEKZA) M 1EL & B -

We focused on this area as the inventories were material to the
consolidated financial statements and the determination of
allowance for inventory obsolescence involved significant
management’s judgement and estimation.
EEWIREBEHENFEURSVBRRBEXN  BEERERT
BRES R EBRBERHE KA -

The Group's disclosures of the inventories are included in notes 3
and 16 to the financial statements.

BEREEHFENRERN M BRI EIR16 -

We attended management’s inventory
counts and observed the processes at
material inventory locations, including
observing the processes implemented by
management to identify and monitor
obsolete inventories. We evaluated the
assessments made by management in
respect of identification of inventory
obsolescence by assessing inventory
costing, ageing reports, and obsolete
inventories on a sampling basis. We re-
calculated the allowance for inventory
obsolescence in accordance with the
Group's policy.
EEEREREENTERM TN EEFEES
BRB@ERET  BEHREEERAHEARER
REFEMEREMNER - EEHEFHETER
K RERBREMRERS  #BUEEEER
BRIREFEMELNTME - EZERE E%
EHHRREN T EREFTERE -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

PEIPORTHOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUALREPORT 2020
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the
Company's audit committee (the ""Audit Committee”) in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

384

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor's report is Hui Kin Fai, Stephen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
LMeEakHEMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ —F —FF - H=1+—HIFZE

2020 2019
—B-%F i
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=t FHET FAT
REVENUE g 5 290,590 275,354
Cost of sales SHE AR (207,334) (182,212
Gross profit EF 83,256 93,142
Other income and gains, net EH A A RIS R R 5 8,406 2,374
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERY (29,132) (28,838)
Administrative expenses THEY (28,316) (27,912)
Other expenses HibFx (1,293) (1,878)
Finance costs BAS BN 7 (383) (544)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRI ATRF 6 32,538 36,344
Income tax expense Frisfif = 10 (5,352) (6,031)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERF 27,186 30,313
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Htn2mEbE(BR)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FJa¢REIE AR EH HEE
that may be reclassified to profit or Bz HM 2 E I
loss in subsequent periods: (E518)
Exchange differences on BE N EBE L Z58
translation of foreign operations 2,765 (637)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FREM2ERE
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, (f&18) MK HE
NET OF TAX 2,765 (537)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FRE2EWBEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 29,951 29,776
Profit attributable to: A& F &R
Owners of the parent BRAHEEA 27,186 30,313
Total comprehensive income ITEFEGEZR
attributable to: W ies -
Owners of the parent ISYNGIL/ PPN 29,951 29,776
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBEREAA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY E{LERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT
Basic and diluted EARG#E 12 HK6.80 cents&{l  HK7.63 cents il

86 PEIPORT HOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e ISR R

31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

2020 2019
—EB-EF —E—NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B NRE 13 9,011 11,443
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 6,902 6,809
Intangible assets EEE 15 726 869
Deferred tax assets EETIRE = 23 2,029 2,063
Total non-current assets MBI EELE 18,668 21,184
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 16 70,018 48,926
Trade and bills receivables Z 5 WA R R 17 83,683 106,637
Prepayments, deposits and TERHIE - me Kk
other receivables Hup el oa 18 22,987 6,243
Cash and cash equivalents RENRESEED 19 210,150 177,127
Total current assets RBEERE 386,838 338,933
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables 2 5 e E 20 14,638 7,247
Other payables and accruals B EAZENESER 21 13,416 9,793
Contract liabilities aHatE 22 15,108 7,430
Lease liabilities HEaRE 14 4,502 4,907
Tax payable FEf BT 3,525 7,086
Total current liabilities MENEEBE 51,189 36,463
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 335,649 302,470
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EBERGEHARS
LIABILITIES 354,317 323,654
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEMF
Lease liabilities HEaRE 14 3,034 2,322
Total non-current liabilities EmBaEEE 3,034 2,322
Net assets EEFE 351,283 321,332
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
e AR IR ()

31 December 2020 —F —ZF#F+{—-HA=+—H

2020 2019
—EIEH —E-hEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FET FHET
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of RATEE AELER
the parent

Share capital [N 24 4,000 4,000
Reserves R 25 347,283 317,332
Total equity A 351,283 321,332

YEUNG Lun Ching WONG Kwan Lik

BmE )
Director Director
g S
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —F —FF+ _H=+—HIFFZ

Attributable to owners of the parent

NG TN

Statutory ~ Exchange
Share Share QOther surplus— fluctuation Retained Total
capital premium* reserve* reserve’ reserve* profits* equity

EEES EXRH
BE REE*  EtbEE N il RERF  EnlE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tk T T Thr T

(note 24) (note 25) (note 25)

(Riztae) (Wias) (WD)
e
At 1 January 2019 RZE-N§-F-H 4 - (66,843) 3,680 (1,941) 250,414 185,314
Profit for the year ERRH - - - - - 30313 30313
Other comprehensive loss for the year. ~ EREH2EER -

Other comprehensive loss that maybe B[ g A4 RS H DR

reclassified to profit or loss in BROEtZABE:

subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of BN ELBHES £

foreign operations - - - - (537) - (637)
Total comprehensive (loss}fincome EN2E(BE) sl

for the year - - - - (637) 30313 29,776
Transfer from retained profits EROREERN - - - 455 - (455) -
Capitalisation lssue BB (TR ANE120)

(as defined in note 121i) 2,99 2,996 - - - - -
New issue of shares from global offering 52 BB ENFHETRA 1,000 124,000 - - - - 125,000
Share issue expenses REARY - (18,758) - - - - (18,758)
At 31 December 2019 and R-E-AE+-A=1-B

1 January 2020 R=E-%F-A-A 4,000 102,246 (66,843) 4135 (2,478) 280,272 321,332
Profit for the year R - - - - - 21,186 21,186
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREM 2 EME :

Other comprehensive income that IR ERENSEE

may be reclassified to profit or loss EROEZENE:

in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of ~ HESNEEHHES £8

foreign operations - - - - 2,765 - 2,765
Total comprehensive income for the year  FREENZEE - - - - 2,765 21,186 29,951
Transfer from retained profits BEARTERN - - - 865 - (865) -
At 31 December 2020 RZE-5F+-f=1-H 4,000 102,246 (66,843) 5,000 287 306,593 351,283
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBERPRBREAVBUARANEE EE

HK$347,283,000 (2019: HK$317,332,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

347,283,000/ 70 ( —Z— N4 : 317,332,000/ 7T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
LERERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ —F —FF - H=1+—HIFZE

2020 2019
—ECBF —T-hEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
L= THERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHMBEERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: B R AT A 32,538 36,344
Adjustments for: HATEBEELAE
Finance costs B FS R AR 7 383 544
Bank interest income RITH BUA 5 (587) (741)
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE  BER
property, plant and equipment RIEER BB 6 90 10
Depreciation of property, mE - BELRRBINE
plant and equipment 6 3,035 2,976
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 6 5,532 5,303
Amortisation of intangible assets WIS ESE 6 351 167
Gain on remeasurement resulting AR IEMEH:TE
from early-termination of FREEE RS
right-of-use assets 5 - (11)
Provision for/(reversal of) PREFTERE(FE)
inventory obsolescence 6 1,898 61)
Provision for/(reversal of) doubtful PR IB RER B,/ (1)
receivables, net F R 6 677 (136)
43,917 44,395
Increase in inventories FEBEN (20,967) (7,978)
Decrease in trade and B S REWFIEREREE
bills receivables Ve 26,722 3,623
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,  FE{FIE - £ R HMELR
deposits and other receivables TIE (LM F (16,140) 10,661
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables & 5 et ZBL N, CE4) 547 (4,351)
Increase/(decrease) in other E e 0B M ERT B B
payables and accruals B, CRld) 3,103 (3,399)
Increase/(decrease) in aHaEEMm/ CRd)
contract liabilities 7,069 (5,983)
Cash generated from operations BBEARS 44,251 36,968
Interest received BB 587 741
Interest paid BASHE (383) (544)
Income taxes paid B SR (9,198) (3,601)
Net cash flows from KEEHMEHRESMEFEE
operating activities 35,257 33,564
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
mEeBEEeRER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ —F —FF{ —H=1—HIF/E

2020 2019
—E-EF —h4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE TExT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHRBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, WEEME - BB MREEE
plant and equipment 13 (186) (2,300)
Additions of intangible assets NEEWEE 15 (165) (1,048)
Net cash flows used in wEEE T
investing activities RemeFeE (351) (3,348)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REITBMERSRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares AR EE TR FIE - 125,000
Share issue expenses H&fﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁz - (25,511)
Principal portion of lease payments MENTAEAE 26(b) (5,317) (4,871)
Listing expenses paid — EHJ:WE?J?Z *E mHEp
equity portion 26(b) - 9)
Net cash flows (used in)/from BEES(FTA) g
financing activities RemEFeE (5,317) 94,609
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HeRBESEEYEMFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 29,589 124,825
Cash and cash equivalents at FHREEREEED
beginning of year 177,127 52,916
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNETE KB B R
changes, net 3,434 (614)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERASRRSEEY
AT END OF YEAR 210,150 177,127
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH B & RBEEZBYLEHB I
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances He MIRIT4E 19 206,367 173,347
Non-pledged time deposits with BARRTIHA AR
original maturity of less than X DS 3 i
three months when acquired FEETFER 19 3,783 3,780
Cash and cash equivalents as RiraReEREREINZ
stated in the consolidated B4 RIRESZEY
statement of cash flows 210,150 177,127
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bor 755 R AR B

31 December 2020 —ZFE -—FF{—-H=+—H

92

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Peiport Holdings Ltd. (the "Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman lIslands under the Companies
Law (as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands on 19 December 2017. The registered office
address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) on 11 January 2019 (the
“Listing Date").

The Company is an investment holding company.
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "Group”) were principally engaged in
the provision of (i) thermal imaging products and
services; (ii) self-stabilised imaging products and
services; and (iii) general aviation products and
services.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Group is Peiport Alpha Ltd., which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"”) with
limited liability and is controlled by Mr. YEUNG Lun
Ching (“Mr. YEUNG") and Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (“Ms.
WONG").
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as

RAREEER (&)

MEARER

ARAMBRAOFBWAT

follows:
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration and registered attributable
Name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
R/ ERUAR BRTEER/ KARER
£ okt fRA BEEAAL TEXK
Direct Indirect
B B
% %
Peiport Bravo Ltd. BVI/Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
BEERERAR LBERRES/BR 18T RERR
Peiport Creative Ltd. BVI/Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
RFEFERLA ABERREE/BR 18T RERR
Peiport Scientific Aero Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of (i) thermal imaging
products and services and
(ii) self-stabilised imaging
products and services
BERMERLA 0 18T Rt () BARRE  MR T
(i) BT PG E m R PR
Peiport Industries Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 - 100 Provision of (i) thermal imaging
products and services;
(ii) self-stabilised imaging
products and services; and
(iii) general aviation products
HFEXERLA 0 2,000,000 T TRt () B E m R R

(i) B RETE G E m RS ¢
R BRAEER

HEERERAD A / 2020 F 5 93
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(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

R/ AR
&8 ok

Name

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
BROLER/
HAUEN

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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1. RARKEEER(FH)

MEARER(E)

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the Company
KARER
EmEst
Direct Indirect
B B
% %

Principal activities

TEEH

DNL Optoelec Systems Limited Hong Kong
BEKEZRERDF 0

Peiport (Shanghai) Optoelectronics
Technology Limited @

People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC")/

Mainland China
BE(LE)AEREERATD  REARKNE
(B )),/HEn
Guangzhou Peiport Sijing PRC/Mainland China
Optoelectronics System Limited®
BNEREBXEZAERAAY  FE/HEAN

PEIPORTHOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000/ T
Renminbi

("RMB")
20,180,000

ARB(TARE])
20,180,0007C

RMB20,000,000

ARE
20,000,007

Provision of thermal imaging
products and services

RRATARGE m KR

Provision of (i} thermal imaging
products and services,
(i) self-stabilised imaging
products and services; and
(iii) general aviation products
TR () BKGE m BRT
(i) BT PG m R PR -
R (i) B A EE R

Provision of (i} thermal imaging
products and services,
(i) self-stabilised imaging
products and services; and
(iii) general aviation products
TR () KGR RT :
(i) BT PG m R PR -
R (i) B A EEm
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REREBEER (&)
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEARER (&)
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration and registered attributable
Name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
R/ ERUAR BRTEER/ FARER
£ okt fRA BEEAL TEXK
Direct Indirect
B B
% %
. __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Beijing Peiport Jingdu Technology ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,100,000 - 100 Provision of (i) thermal imaging
Limited® products and services;

(i) self-stabilised imaging
products and services; and
(iii) general aviation products

EREERBRHER AR B/ REN = R () ARG Em LR
5,100,0007C (i) B T PR 2 i TR R
R i) EAMEER
Peiport (Zhuhai) Air Equipment PRC/Mainland China United States - 100 Provision of general aviation
Manufacturing Limited @ dollars ("US$") products and services

250,000

RS MERMBEERARY FE/PENM 250,000% T REBRNZER RS
(EIA))

(a) Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law () BIEPBEEEFMAIEBEERE

(b) Registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law (b) RIBEFBERFMABRAR
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 RBEEE)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’'s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)
Definition of Material

The adoption of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs do
not have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts®

Insurance Contracts®®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current>®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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2.3

24

100

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSS
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, the Group considers that these
new and revised HKFRSs may result in changes in
accounting policies but are unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured

or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

DFEEE (&)

NPERMBERRAEXREZIMEER
EMBEDERHYATFEAEEEMS
BEAZREEHAZTERZATRFE

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the E SR

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in F— — HREREEXEBER
active markets for identical assets or ER T I 2 B (R
liabilities FEE)

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which FH — ERELAFEFEME
the lowest level input that is significant BEAZABR(EE
to the fair value measurement is s E) ZIEEH AR
observable, either directly or indirectly B2 mERE

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which BE=K — HREQATEFEMS
the lowest level input that is significant BERZTAIHBEER
to the fair value measurement is B ABIR 2 MERE

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

REEUEENMBRRERZEE
LRBEME  AEEEBARTREHR
EFFED (AR YR FEEREM
EEEAZKEERARE) EEEAH
ETRERER
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)~ has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

24 FESHERYE (&)
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(i)
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i
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

M - BERRERTE (&)

WENBERXREENE  BENRE
BB ZfEEHE R F M ER A ER R E
EFtE - SUEMERAZEBFRMT

Buildings 5% B 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the EmEEE ZEE RS 20%
lease terms or 20% 2B HE

Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33'3%

R HER 20% to 33'/:%

office equipment WAERE
Plant and machinery 20% to 33'/5% R 7 K He A 20% to 33'/s%
Equipment for rental purpose  20% FRERE 2 & 20%
Motor vehicles 33"/3% qE 33'%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

W - BELEREEESHEDFERFE
HIRE - RIFZIE B KN IR A A ER
BEH BB MEHDDRFTE -
AEEBZELRERBRFERERBFRIERE
B -FRFHRITERE  WTFAHAE
(Fn@EA) °

WE - BENMREERR (BRITHER
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Computer software

Purchased computer software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 3 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FES:tHERBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE (&)
Group as a lessee (Continued) AEEEREBEAN (&)
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EAEELE

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Several warehouses, system
integration and service centres and
offices (collectively the
“Office Properties”) and a car
parking space

1to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

PEIPORTHOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUALREPORT 2020

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B SR M (5])

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBREE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

HE (#E)
FEEEREBEA (E)

b) HEEARE

HERENHERKRZEEHRN
e E N RN IRERER -
HEMNFEREENK(BEREE
B 5 3R B = AR AT ) FE 4
B BURREHEA RN 2HE
[ ARFEMRBEREER S
MWER HENKERRAKES
EREERITENBEEEENITE
EBRZIEHREMEIR - ATRTIZHE
ENRRMRAKEITEEFRLL
HE o MMRIENIE BN R aya] &
THE M REB B RS RMGM
BAE MR NER R

EFTEEEMNRNRER - BRE
ERREOMNERHEURTE  AEE
HEHERE B EREEERE -
ERBBERZE  BINBEEREN
SR ARBRFIE AIB N - R
AT TR E R B o sk - A
HE - HEHRBALRE HEMN
REEERC (IR BRI =K
B EMBBARKEENKERLE
b)) LB ERREERE BRI G
BARL AIEHFEHRERER
ARE(E



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B iRk M =T (88)

31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade and bills
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade and bills receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets RERHMERMEE (F)
(Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued) BRERERE (F)

The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’'s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.
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114

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECLs). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECLs).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 1 year past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade and bills receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 —

Stage 2 —

Stage 3 —

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued) tRasE(E)
Subsequent measurement (Continued) #ETE (|)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEBER AT ENETHEE

After initial recognition, trade payables and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the special
identification basis and, in the case of semi-finished
products and finished products, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Government grants
related to income are presented as other income in
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 =ES3BERBIE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued) Wit (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHHINE (E)
(Continued)

(a) Sales of products (a) Em#HE
Revenue from the sales of products is recognised EmEEMBRENEELRHEE
at the point in time when control of the asset is BETREPHEM(—MARNE
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery a5 ) TR o

of the products.

(b) Provision of maintenance services (b) BHEISIRE
Revenue from the provision of maintenance RIS IR TSN FT S AR
services is recognised over the scheduled period NIZEGEERR - THREFR
on a straight-line basis because the customer K kZzAREEREENFE -

simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources R B H A ROR A U

Equipment rental income is recognised on a time X E B WA B T B HA 4R B R B 1) R
proportion basis over the lease terms. Variable lease oo AEUARIE B F Eaa] S HER
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are FIEHEEENSTHHRNERR ABRA -

recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income HAlg A

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using MEWAIREAEEFAEERITAR
the effective interest method by applying the rate that TEHRAF HA Sk A2 AR (@ A ) M9l At ok
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts RRSWABEUBZENEEREDF
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a B E - VBB EET AR -

shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Finance costs

Finance costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of certain subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease
term of contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate the lease (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the
lease term for leases of the Office Properties and a car
parking space due to the significance of these assets
to its operations. These leases have a short non-
cancellable period (i.e., one to five years) and there will
be a significant negative effect on production if a
replacement is not readily available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Withholding taxes arising from the distribution of
dividends

The Group's determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes arising from the distribution of
dividends from subsidiaries according to the relevant
tax jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing
of the payment of the dividends. Management
considered that it is not probable that the Group's
subsidiaries in Mainland China will distribute retained
profits in the foreseeable future, and accordingly no
provision for withholding tax was made. Where the
final outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally rewarded, the difference will impact
the deferred tax provision in the period in which the
difference arises.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for certain
deductible temporary differences and unpaid expenses
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in note 23 to the financial
statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and
bills receivables

The Group makes allowances on receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of the reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and bills receivables and expected
credit loss allowance in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. Further details of the trade
and bills receivables are given in note 17 to the financial
statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing
rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group "would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such
as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’'s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).

EXREFHE R A (&)

fhET R HE M (8)

EZRWRERERRBEEMGEERR
B

AEBERBEDRREBEREEROR
AT IR R WO R B - AR BNMEH &
EFRJLEBREFENBABERT
B - S IRIEA R B e B E RS
REHREARNOE IR AE G

WA BN R LA - MBRERRK
TEEHRWFARERREIA LA
EEEEBERNZEEBHMEm
E-AHBEZREFBENEBREEZE
L IBHN M MR

HE - HEEEERAER

AEBEIEFHREHENSHONEX
At - AEEEREEERFE(T1BR])
KEAEHEEAE - IBRIREAEEER
PR A RBELER - RESEEEAL
RERRTEEREEREEERUER
MEEMUTENEEMBAINHH
T o At IBRIRERASKE [ 2 T H
BRI BREAMEEOFEMIm R
ETRERZNMBAR)HFEEREL
[ R B RO IR R R 1 By (PlanE FHE
FELAM B A RIMINREERIER) - TE
mE - AREERTBRREHABE (DI
mEHNE) (HAIA)EHEIBR WARE
EITETERBENGE (HIKEAR
B EER) -
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3.

130

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
made based on the estimated net realisable value of
the inventories. The assessment of the provision
required involves management’s judgement and
estimates on market conditions. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying amounts of inventories and the write-
down and reversal of write-down of inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group was principally engaged in the provision of
thermal imaging products and services, self-stabilised
imaging products and services and general aviation
products and services. Information reported to the
Group's chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, focuses on the operating results of the
Group as a whole as the Group's resources are
integrated and no discrete operating segment
information is available. Accordingly, no operating
segment information is presented.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHIEFR (F)
(Continued)
Geographical information & & R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) ZREIBEFHIWE
2020 2019
—E-FF  FTNHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Mainland China R A3 222,878 235,221
Hong Kong and Macau BB MR 65,282 37,624
Overseas Rl 2,430 2,509
290,590 275,354

The revenue information above is based on the

bt E E R TRBEE P A

locations of the customers. i o
(b) Non-current assets (b) EARBEE

2020 2019
—EZEHF —FE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Mainland China AR A 11,611 15,018
Hong Kong a8 5,028 4,103
16,639 19,121

EHSEREEEERIRIBEEM
EifEH - NEREERBEE -

The non-current assets information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
deferred tax assets.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue derived from sales to individual customers
which contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 is as follows:

IFREFEH

RBE_Z-_ZEFN-_FT—NF+_-A
—t—BIEFE EEAEEBWISER
B10% 2 AARPHEMSWRIOT ¢

2020 2019
—E-RF TR
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETT
Customer A Z2EA 45,676 57,156
Customer B =Z5EB 37,153 N/ATE A *
Customer C =2EC N/ATEH* 35,059

*

The corresponding revenues from these customers are not disclosed as
the revenue individually did not account for 10% or more of the Group's
revenue for the respective periods.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5.

Was - HAU AR s

NET
An analysis of revenue,other income and gains, net is Was - H AR FEITAT -
as follows:
Revenue Wy 35
2020 2019
—E-BF TN
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Thermal imaging products and services Zpk 1% & b M ARTS
— Sales of goods Nete ™ — EEREMEw 150,430 144,187
— Rendering of maintenance — MG ERE R
services and equipment REHEEMEE
rental Note (8] 12,411 12,405
162,841 156,592
Self-stabilised imaging products BB E K& E M MRS
and services
— Sales of goods Note @ — fHEE T 21,148 25,266
— Rendering of maintenance — REAEERE K
services and equipment HiEFREmEe
rental Note Bl 11,701 9,299
32,849 34,565
General aviation products and services @R ZE @R RB
— Sales of goods Note ™ — HEEIEN 93,737 82,811
— Rendering of maintenance — R EREEE
services Nete ® 1,163 1,386
94,900 84,197
Total #ast 290,590 275,354
BHEE(A)

Nete ® The revenue from sales of goods was recognised at a point in time.

Note®  The revenue from rendering of maintenance services and equipment

FifiE (B)

rental was recognised over time, which included operating lease income
of HK$3,625,000 (2019: HK$3,085,000) for the year ended 31

December 2020.

HEERKEINER TR o

TR A 5 BR 75 R o {8 70 8 UK a5 T B B e
RHBEEE-T-EF+=-A=1+—H
IEFEHEETHERAS,625000FT(=F

— % : 3,085,000/ 7T) °
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5.

134

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. & - HttW A R WS 55 (])
NET (Continued)
Performance obligations BHEE
The performance obligations for sales of goods is HEERMNBHNEARRINEYRET
satisfied upon delivery of the goods and the BT MITHEBRENEZEEHESN
performance obligations for rendering of maintenance BHBETRIRER BB METRMETT °
services and equipment rental is satisfied over time.
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the RZZEZEFR-ZZFE-—NLF+ZA
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or —t+—HAREFHKBHETCRETM
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 BITHE D RETRIETT) R S ER
are as follows: T
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Amounts expected to be recognised FEEISIER AWM SEE ¢
as revenue:
Within one year —F R 9,732 9,817
After one year — &% 19,614 25,265
29,346 35,082

For contracts of the sales of goods with original
expected duration of less than one year, the Group has
elected not to disclose information about the remaining
performance obligations. All considerations from
contracts with customers with original expected
duration of not less than one year have been included
in the transaction price and, therefore, were included in
the information disclosed in the above table.
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5.
NET (Continued)

Was - EAUA R s (&)

Other income and gains, net HA g A R Wz F R
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Bank interest income RITHEUA 587 741
Gain on remeasurement resulting FIRRIRIEMEHF T2
from early termination of FREEEZIWZ
right-of-use assets - 11
Reversal of doubtful receivables, net [ zk18 R B 5 B 58 - 136
Recovery of written-off trade W B B 32 S IR
receivables 32 1,417
Government grants* AT B * 1,679 -
Foreign exchange differences, net i N E R 5,991 -
Others HAb 117 69
8,406 2,374

During the year ended 31 December 2020, government grants mainly
included subsidies obtained from “Employment Support Scheme”
under the “Anti-epidemic Fund” launched by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government. There are no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies relating to these grants.

* BEZZF+_A=+—HLFE K
B EE BB EBRBITTRIEBUGHH
B [P RRES ] T [REEFE] EEN
HHEL o XMW ARG RRAFIA o
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31 December 2020 —F—ZFF+=-H=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after

BR B B A

AL EERR B AT & B T IR (GEA)

charging/(crediting): AN EIBEER -
2020 2019
—ECEH —ET-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
5T FET FH&T
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 198,071 175,546
Cost of services provided 24 AR AR AN 9,263 6,666
Depreciation of property, W BB REETE
plant and equipment 13 3,035 2,976
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {#BEZETE 14 5,532 5,303
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 & E 1 5 15 351 167
Research and development costs A E£pK AN 5,593 4,056
Provision for/(reversal of) JEUR R T RBR B E
doubtful receivables, net (@) 538 5,17 677 (136)
Recovery of written-off trade W [el 2 80 & 5 e URIE
receivables 5 (32) (1,417)
Provision for/(reversal of) fREF SR/ (Bm)
inventory obsolescence 1,898 61)
Employee benefit expense EERAFAY
(excluding directors’ and chief (T"EREEER
executive officer's remuneration 1742, 27 BM
(note 8)): EEDE
Wages and salaries TERE 40,001 31,479
Pension scheme contributions RIRE AR
(defined contribution scheme) (FEtaata) 2,709 3,693
42,710 35,172
Auditor’'s remuneration % &5 il 357 Bl 1,280 1,300
Foreign exchange differences, ME 5, 7 B RE */*x
net*/** (5,991)** 1,405%
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - HE KR
property, plant and equipment REIEE EE 90 10
Bank interest income BITFIEUA 5 (587) (741)

The foreign exchange loss, net was included in “Other expenses’’ in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

** The foreign exchange gain, net was included in “Other income and
gains, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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7.

FINANCE COSTS

7. BAESRLA

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MK ADITAT -

2020 2019
i = i
HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 383 544
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8. EERTHARTM
OFFICER’'S REMUNERATION
Directors’' and chief executive officer's remuneration BEBIAES LTHRANT LR
for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing Al ﬁ%”& A5 51 55 383(1)(a) ~ (b)
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the ORMEARAR(HEBRESMEER)
“Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the %Efﬁﬂ%2%ﬁiﬁé§ﬁ‘]¢W%%&ﬁﬁ%@f&
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the T -
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fees we 360 360
Salaries, allowances and benefits e ERREWER

in kind 4,767 4,547

Performance related bonuses *KIRMEBEE 735 722

Pension scheme contributions RIKE: Jr%J{ 36 36

5,898 5,665
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8 EERTHARFM (&)
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive FRMBLIERITEETI AR S
directors during the year were as follows: o
2020 2019

—E-FF TR
HK$’000 HK$"000

FER FAT
Mr. NIU Zhongjie L4 S 120 120
Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen X+ 120 120
Mr. HOU Min BEIREE 120 120
360 360
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAMEEMENEIIFNTES
independent non-executive directors during the HMEe (ZZE—NF: |-

year (2019: Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8.
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and the chief executive

EERTRARTH (&)

(b) HITEERTHAR

officer
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
2020 in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
A= 103 RENEE Bike
—ECER ENER 4L FHEIftER b Pk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT FTART TER
. _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________}
Mr. YEUNG BrE 1,922 295 - 2,217
Ms. WONG* Tat* 1,774 265 18 2,057
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai BRELE 1,071 175 18 1,264
4,767 735 36 5,538
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
2019 in kind bonuses  contributions remuneration
e 2ER FHEE LG
“E-hF EYiEF TE4T BEGS ez
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr FTEx TAT TET
Mr. YEUNG BEE 1,873 290 - 2,163
Ms. WONG* Tt 1,637 260 18 1,915
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai BiRREE 1,037 172 18 1,227
4,547 722 36 5,305
* Ms. WONG is also the chief executive officer of the Company. * FLZEIRAERNRBITHAEE -

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2019: Nil).

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office (2019: Nil).

RER BEAHEEENEXRE
MEEAFM ZH(—F—N5F
&)

RER AEBAUERNEEIH
IERIMAR SR E R IIARK B R
MERERMBRRNEE T
—NEFE) e
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9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year
included two directors (2019: three directors), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining three (2019: two) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive officer of the Company are as follows:

TEEREHES

FANDEGERFEEEEMAES (=
TNE: Z2EF)  EFMFBER
MBHmEAMEs FAKT=R(=F
—NF: MB)AHARRAEFTHITERA
BHZRSHEBNFMFBET

2020 2019
—g-®F —ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R NEYER
in kind 4,345 2,019
Performance related bonuses RIBBBTELL 650 253
Pension scheme contributions RIRSEH B 54 36
5,049 2,308

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

SIAATH AR IFESR RIFRSIT
BABZE=HEEHBENT

Number of employees
EE"AR
2020 2019
—EIERF —E-hEF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 B 7L E 1,500,000 % 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 B 7L & 2,000,000 % 7T 2 -

3 2
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREBRAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in
which subsidiaries of the Group are domiciled and
operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman lIslands, the Company is not subject to any
income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for
one subsidiary of the Group, which is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2019:HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25%
(2019:8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are
taxed at 16.5% (2019:16.5%).

Pursuant to the PRC Income Tax Law and the
respective regulations, corporate income tax (“CIT")
has been provided at the rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on
the taxable income of the subsidiaries operating in
Mainland China during the year, except for certain
subsidiaries of the Group, which are qualified small and
micro-sized enterprises (“SMEs") under Caishui [2019]
No.13. According to Caishui [2019] No.13 effective
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021, qualified
SMEs refer to enterprises that do not engage in any
restricted or prohibited industries in the PRC and meet
the criteria of (i) number of staff not exceeding 300; (ii)
total assets not exceeding RMB50,000,000; and (iii)
annual taxable income not exceeding RMB3,000,000.
Qualified SMEs are eligible for a reduced CIT rate of
20%, 75% reduction of taxable income for the first
RMB1,000,000 taxable income and 50% reduction of
taxable income for the remaining taxable income.

AEEBAREREERAEE KB R
BIREMAR R EEMAERDEERE LK
KEZMHEMBAAFHR - RIEFRES
BEERIRA - RNRRBAGHEM
PRS®L

ERNFRRESBATES 2 Gt ERE
A2 16.5% (ZZFE—NE  16.5%) 2
HEERBEFESHEE  BRASEK
—MEBRRIN - ZK BB AT
BREERHETHEERER - ZWB
N BH B 2,000,000 T (ZZF—NF
2,000,000 7% 7T ) B FE SR Bl A Bl & &
825% (=ZF—JLF :8.25%) ' 8 N1
JERRTDR AR E B16.5% (ZFE—N4F
16.5%) °

RIBER BEFTERERABEAD - BEAM
BRICEMERDERFAREFREH
R Hb A4S & Y BT B A A A9 FE FR B R A IR
25% (ZZ—NLF 1 25%) 7 T R Ve H #
#H AEBENETHBABRIN  ZF
NRBHBI20191135E THE B/ 8
WA ZE(NERHFITE]D - RIBEFH
20191135 (R=_E—NF—A—HEZ
T-—F+-_A=+—H4ER)  AE®
INFUBR (b 2 HE A R B I A BT
PR#ISREE F7T3 B G AT S EEM « ()
BT AZAHIB300% : (| AEETB
i A R ¥ 50,000,000 7T ¢ M (jii) & E FERR
FRUg AT #Bi@ AR 3,000,000 7T ° & &
N RIFI 2 ZH20% HEEDE
FriSfisiE - & ARE 1,000,000 7T K fE
R AR Z H 75% B FE R B U AR
% MR THERBWABRIT] ZH50%
R FERFR U AR R ©
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

10. FREHMAX ()

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B iR R M aE (48)

31 December 2020 —F —ZF#F+{—-HA=+—H

2020 2019

—EF-FF TR

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Current BNHEA 5,301 5,860
Deferred (note 23) RIE (BF5E23) 51 171
Total tax charge for the year FRHEIBEY H 4258 5,352 6,031

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax
rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e.,
the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as

AR A R E KD M8 A )RR AL
FTEBRR ZAEM R HRBR AR 2
ERATERX B ERRERAE TR
P 28R - AR @A B = (RADEE B
F)HERBE 2 HIRMT -

follows:
2020 2019
“ECER —E-NE
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TEx THT
Profit before tax BB BT A 32,538 36,344
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BETHZE16.5% T E 2 HE 5,369 16.5 5,997 16.5
Effect on different taxation rate R B H RN E 2 52
in Mainland China 882 2.7 688 1.9
Lower tax rates enacted by local tax 5 R T B 4 R B
authorities (1,273) (3.9) (789) (2.2)
Income not subject to tax BN (299) (0.9) (362) (1.0
Expenses not deductible for tax RNEMF S 700 2.1 598 1.6
Tax losses utilised from previous BERRSEHESE
periods (27) (0.1) (101) (0.3)
Total tax charge for the year ERFIEY Y e 5,352 16.4 6,031 16.5
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11.

12.

DIVIDENDS 1. BRE
2020 2019
—B-BF ZFNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FHET

Proposed final — HK1.35 cents BAERE — ORI ER1.3581(L
(2019: Nil) per ordinary share (ZZE—hF: #|) 5,400 -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to REEEBRARBEFARARFRER

the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the JEfERR B R g fER - FAEER -

forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO 12. SRR EBREZHEARBLER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 2

PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts WRERBMDERSYRGF LR

is based on the profit for the year attributable to EaFBEARBRBEFEFREZMNEREFA

ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted B % 17400,000,000 % ( =& — N, F -

average number of ordinary shares of 400,000,000 397,260,000 %) & i A% 79 hn i F 15 % 25

(2019: 397,260,000 in issue during the year. TE

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in REERBEZE_Z_TFR_ZT—NF

issue during the years ended 31 December 2020 and TZA=tT—RIEFETESFETHE

2019. TE#E T AR o

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share BRERREERNTIDERATIEAG

are based on: g

Earnings 2020 2019

B —ECEF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Profit attributable to ordinary equity  FESKREAR N ST
holders of the parent, used in the FrRNE AR EBER
basic and diluted earnings per BA AREZEF
share calculations 27,186 30,313
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO 12. A RIEEBREZHEAELGER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT (Continued)

B3 (&)

Shares Number of shares
B’ R E
2020 2019
—ECEH ZE—NF
Notes ‘000 ‘000
BaE Fr® T
Number of issued shares on R—A—BE%TRNHEAE
1 January 400,000 380
Effect of the Capitalisation Issue WZZE—AF—A+—B#7T (i)
on 11 January 2019 BRI BT E - 299,620
Weighted average number of RNZZE—hF—HF+—H (ii)
ordinary shares in issue upon PR ETKELEITH
completion of global offering BRI R B
on 11 January 2019 - 97,260
Weighted average number of STEEREANEERA
ordinary shares used in the Fr R 3 AR hn
basic and diluted earnings per  F#HRxER
share calculations 400,000 397,260
Notes: B3
(i) Pursuant to a written resolution of the shareholders of the Company (i) BIEAATBRER —_ZE—N\E+=-A+N\H

passed on 18 December 2018, a total of 299,620,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at par value to the shareholders
of the Company as of the date immediately before the Listing Date on a
pro rata basis by way of capitalisation of HK$2,996,200 (the
"Capitalisation Issue”) from the Company's share premium account on
the Listing Date.

(i) On the Listing Date, 100,000,000 new shares were issued at a price of
HK$1.25 per share in connection with the Company’s initial public
offering on the Stock Exchange.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Bt 7 3 3R B = ()

31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥%¥ - WERXE
Furniture,
fixtures Equipment
Leasehold  andoffice  Plantand for rental Motor
Buildings improvements equipment  machinery purpose vehicles Total
BE KB #ER il
B3 NEEE  BLERE  BEREE  BELRE hat: @it
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TAR Tan AR TER TAn TAR
. _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
31 December 2020 —E-EE+-A=1-H
Cost: A
At 1 January 2020 RN=2-%%-A-A 5,876 1,484 2,244 32N 8,610 529 22,014
Additions HE - 24 49 13 - - 186
Disposal e - - (25) - (210) - (235)
Exchange realignment EXAE 362 n 91 208 520 14 1,272
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZF+-F=1-H 6,238 1,585 2,359 3,592 8,920 543 23,231
Accumulated depreciation: ZiHE:
At 1 January 2020 R-ZF-%%¢-F-H 2,056 904 1,136 2,702 3,466 307 10,571
Provided during the year EREE 295 189 504 263 1,689 9% 3,035
Disposal = - - (23) - (122) - (145)
Exchange realignment i 144 62 62 181 301 15 765
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZF+-f=1-H 2,495 1,155 1,679 3,146 5,334 417 14,226
Net book value: REFE -
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZF+-f=1-H 3,743 430 680 446 3,586 126 9,011

wEreRERAR/2020%% 14D



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B iR R M EE (4E)
31 December 2020 —FE=—FF+=H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. % - BFEK&E (&)

(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures Equipment
Leasehold ~ and office Plant and for rental Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  machinery purpose vehicles Total
HE HE ZER e
BF NEEE  BRER HREREN  BERE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL AL AL TEL AL AL TEL
. _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
31 December 2019 “E-fE+t=A=t-A
Cost: A
At 1 January 2019 RZT-hE-A-A 5978 1,240 1,290 3123 6,927 243 18,806
Additions NE - 265 1,150 600 - 285 2,300
Disposal it - - (173) (396) - - (569)
Transfer* B - - - - 1,827 - 1827
Exchange realignment ERLEE (102) (21) (23) (56) (144) (4) (350)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=1-8 5,876 1,484 2,244 3271 8,610 529 22,014
Accumulated depreciation: BiIE:
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-hE-A-A 1,793 588 851 2,857 1,986 248 8323
Provided during the year ENEfh 298 331 466 283 1,535 63 2,976
Disposal e - - (168) (391) - - (559)
Exchange realignment ERLAE (35) (15) (13) 47) (55) 4 (169)
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NEFTZA=1-H 2,056 904 1,136 2,702 3,466 307 10,671
Net book value: RRFE:
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NETZA=T-H 3,820 580 1,108 569 5,144 22 11,443

Transfer represented the change of the purpose of “SkyEye dispatcher”
and thermal infrared imager from sale to leasing and the products were
reclassified from inventories to property, plant and equipment
accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B iRk M =T (88)

31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

14. LEASES 14. HE
The Group as a lessee KEBEREABEA
The Group has lease contracts for Office Properties and AEERBRAEMER —EFEAH
a car parking space with lease terms of 1 to 5 years. HEAR  HEBHRAIELF - — KM
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and T AKENGEREENINGERE
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. HEEEE -
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) ERAREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use FRALEEFEAEEENREABER
assets and the movements during the year are as FEIERAT -
follows:
Office
Properties
and a car
parking space
MARYE
& —{@fFE AL
HK$'000
FH&TT
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—-—hE—A—H 11,278
Additions = 1,326
Depreciation charge nes (5,303)
Remeasurement resulting from RiRpIRIFTHEMEHTE
early-termination of a lease (423)
Exchange realignment FE 5 A% (69)
As at 31 December 2019 and RZZBE-NF+A=1+—HK
1 January 2020 —ETF—A—H 6,809
Additions NE 6,192
Depreciation charge mES (5,532)
Modification {&ET (713)
Exchange realignment P 5 146
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-_EF+__A=+—H 6,902
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
IR M ()

31 December 2020 —F —ZF#F+{—-HA=+—H
14. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

PEIPORT HOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

14.

HE (&)

AEBERABA ()

(b)

HERE

FRAHEERENERREREZSER

movements during the year are as follows: N
2020 2019
—E-FF TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Carrying amount at 1 January N—A—AHERE 7,229 11,278
New leases HEE 6,188 1,326
Accretion of interest recognised F AR ETF B
during the year 383 B544
Remeasurement resulting from RIRRIRIETHEMEHTE
early-termination of a lease - (434)
Modification B=T (713) -
Payments TNEA (5,700) (5,415)
Exchange realignment [E 5, 8% 149 (70)
Carrying amount at 31 December W+ —=—A=+—H&EERE 7,536 7,229
Analysed into: PaR)iv=IE
Current portion BNEREE 4,502 4,907
Non-current portion FERNHAER 5 3,034 2,322

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is

disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

HEAFENT A TETBREK
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B TS SRR B oE (4D

31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

14. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation

14. 1HE (&)
REBERAEA ()

(c) TEERZFTEREEEAENSEN

to leases are as follows: ™
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHEIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 383 544
Depreciation charge of FREEENESR
right-of-use assets 5,532 5,303
Total amount recognised in AT BT
profit or loss 5,915 5,847

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in
note 26(c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its equipment (note 13) consisting of
six equipment for rental purpose under operating lease
arrangements. Rental income recognised by the Group
during the year was HK$3,625,000 (2019:
HK$3,085,000), details of which are included in note 5
to the financial statements.

(d) FEERRSIR L AERENBRKHT

FE26(c) PHLEE ©

AEBERBHEA

AEERBLCERER YN HEERE (M
H13) AT BREERERRN AR
B AEBRFRERAS KA
3,625,000 7t (—ZZF — /L4 : 3,085,000

AITL) BRI B S IR EED ©

HEERERAT /2020 F 3k

149



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B iR R M aE (48)

31 December 2020 —F —ZF#F+{—-HA=+—H

14. LEASES (Continued) 14. AE (&)
The Group as a lessor (Continued) REBEREHBEA (M)
At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease RZZEZTF+_A=+—0  &5H
payments receivable by the Group in future periods RIBT A HHSCERER R REBE A
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants FRKAARMRBEMKNOT

are as follows:

2020 2019
—g-%F —F-N%F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT
Within one year —FR 1,881 2,925
After one year but within two years iR —FEMFEN 127 1,772
After two years but within three years HEMFE=FR - 120
2,008 4,817
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. |MILEE
Computer
software
B e
HK$'000
FET

31 December 2020 —E-EF+-HA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of RZZEZTF—H—HHKAK

accumulated amortisation O R a5 869
Additions NE 165
Amortisation provided during the year F N SR (351)
Exchange realignment FE 5, A% 43
At 31 December 2020 N-ZE-_EF+_A=1+—H 726
At 31 December 2020 RZE-_ZTF+_A=+—H
Cost BN 1,271
Accumulated amortisation RET#EE (545)
Net carrying amount REFE 726
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B TS SRR B oE (4D

31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

15. B EE (&)

Computer
software
B
HK$'000
FET
31 December 2019 —E2—-hE+=-A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of RZE—NF—A BB
accumulated amortisation Bk BT -
Additions NE 1,048
Amortisation provided during the year F S B (167)
Exchange realignment FE 5, % (12)
At 31 December 2019 RZEBE—NF+_A=+—8 869
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+-_A=1+—8H
Cost B Ax 1,034
Accumulated amortisation Lty (165)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 869

REZEBRERDE /2020 F R
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B 35 AR M aE (48D

31 December 2020 —F —ZF#F+{—-HA=+—H

16. INVENTORIES 16. 7&
2020 2019
—B-%F —FHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Components and consumables B KB R 841 982
Semi-finished products e 5,264 6,052
Finished products IR h 66,190 42,232
72,295 49,266
Less: Provision B B (2,277) (340)
70,018 48,926

BHE T _ZHF+_A=+—8HIF
B RHEEKIAERNRETERER
1,898,000 B L (Z T — NF : WHERK
BRI PREF B £61,00087T)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
provision for inventory obsolescence recognised at cost
of sales amounted to HK$1,898,000 (2019: the
provision for inventory obsolescence reversed at cost
of sales amount of HK$61,000).
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 17. EZERRHERERE
2020 2019

—B-BF ZFNF
HK$°000 HK$'000

FTER TAT
Trade receivables B S EWRIE 73,478 90,040
Bills receivables R ERE 11,975 17,673

85,453 107,713
Impairment NERIE] (1,770) (1,076)

83,683 106,637
The Group's trading terms with its customers are NEFREENE S ESTBEAEE -
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where WHEERI TP —RETELEN
payment in advance is normally required. The credit o EEHEEA—Z=—FA - BLE
period is generally one to three months. Each customer ESaasEE5E NEE R LGRS
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to EHERERRKZE TREEEE
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables HEAREREEERR - BHES
and has a credit control policy to minimise credit risk. HEREEASFTHHE - 85 kK
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior BN EREE AT S o

management. Trade and bills receivables are non-
interest-bearing.
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17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

17.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B iR R M aE (48)

EZRRFEARERRE (F)

RBEMRIRBEZB I TNE SR
OB M EWE B RRER D AT AN T (FIBR &S
BERE) -

2020 2019

=EF-FF TR

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Less than 3 months PR={EA 45,363 67,563
3 to 6 months =ZE=XEA 10,728 14,502
6 to 12 months NE+ @A 2,341 7,662
Over 1 year —FEE 25,251 16,910
83,683 106,637

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment

B 5 I MR TR N 8 W SR 1 O Rl (B S 1B

of trade and bills receivables are as follows: ERNEEBERNT
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
At beginning of year REFH] 1,076 1,216

Provision for/(reversal of) doubtful JFE U FR0E R ER B, (BE(El)

receivables, net (note 6) F%E (i3 6) 677 (136)
Exchange realignment PE % 17 (4)
At end of year MER 1,770 1,076

An impairment analysis of trade and bills receivables is
performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade and bills
receivables are written off if past due for more than
three years and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Bt 7 3 3R B = ()

31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 17. EZEWFEREWREE (&)
(Continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk UTAASERABEEETAENES
exposure on the Group's trade and bills receivables JE WK IA K fE W R 18 2 1= AR R B it 0 &
using a provision matrix: *
As at 31 December 2020 R=-B=-FBF+=-A=+—8

Pastdue  Past due
more than more than

Past due 1 year 2years  Past due
within  but within but within over
Current 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
AHHR —5{ WEE  RfEBs
BN -5 ORWE  IREEF =% @5t
ECLs rate BHEEREX 0%-0.3% 3.0% 12.2% 43.8% 100.0% 0-2.4%
Gross carrying amount ERAE(TEL)

(HK$'000) 68,656 13,218 2,689 26 864 85,453
ECLs (HK$'000) EHEEER(TET) 170 397 328 " 864 1,770
As at 31 December 2019 R=-B-hhE+=BA=+—8H

Pastdue  Pastdue
more than  more than
Past due 1 year 2vyears  Pastdue
within -~ but within  but within over
Current 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
BEDR —F8 WEE  REHBE
- £ DIRME  IR=F =F @5t
. ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
ECLs rate BHREEERE 0%-0.4% 2.2% 19.9% 38.4% 100% 0-1.2%
Gross carrying amount EReE(TAL)

(HK$'000) 102,233 4,370 215 482 413 107,713

ECLs (HK$'000) EREEEE(TET) 339 9% 43 185 413 1,076

BEmRAERAR/2020F% 10D
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31 December 2020 —ZE_-_ZFF+_-_F=+—H

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. BAMIE - RERHMEWFIE

RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT F&T
Prepayments B FRIB 11,526 2,813
Deposits and other receivables e N H b U R 11,461 3,430
22,987 6,243
The above balances are unsecured and interest-free. ritEsRAEEBEES -
The financial assets included in the above balances LlEREENEREERITHEE
relate to receivables for which there were no recent BN aSCENERRESR -
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31 RZEZEFR_ZZ-—NLF+ZA
December 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was =—+—0 BEEGEEFHARK -

assessed to be minimal.
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31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. RERASEEY

2020 2019

—B-BF ZFNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Cash and bank balances RE RIBTES 206,367 173,347
Time deposits TFHEATFER 3,783 3,780
210,150 177,127

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to HK$60,804,000 (2019: HK$38,888,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’'s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

RIEBR > REBUARBAEZSR
& KIR1T A £ /560,804,000 T (=&
— L5 £ 38,888,000/87T) - ARMETT]
BHREBEMEE - R BRE(REA
RAMBEIINEE RGN R(EE - BE
RITEEERHAT)  AEBEA B BERE
EITINEZE B IRITHEARE i H
HEEE o

RITRSBREBEETBRITEREIZF A
KEDAE - EREHRFREZTENE
HAT AR R BB B, o SRIT RS8R TF DR
AT B0 8 ) RO ER RO AT SEERTT ©
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31 December 2020 —F —ZF#F+{—-HA=+—H

20. TRADE PAYABLES 20. EZENARIE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end R EBRIREZA S THNE S ERN
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as KR RESITAT -
follows:
2020 2019

—EF-FF  ZFNF
HK$°000 HK$ 000

FET FAT
Within 1 month DR —1E A 6,354 5,100
1 to 3 months —E=={#A 4,115 461
Over 3 months ={EANE 4,169 1,686
14,638 7,247
The trade payables are interest-free and are normally B SENFIBETERBEENTEAI0
settled ranging from 30 to 90 days. £90H -
21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21. HWENREREGER
2020 2019
—E-RF TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Other payables H e 308 4,874 4,070
Accruals fEFTE A 8,542 5,723
13,416 9,793
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are HMENREBETFTERBER —F R
normally settled within one year. ife
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B TS SRR B oE (4D

31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 22. A&
Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the AEEMENEBEETERNEFANRK
advance payments made by customers while the 18 - iAE R E M RS R ER A o
underlying goods or services are yet to be provided.
Changes in the contract liabilities during the years REE-ZT-_TFR-_F-NF+=A
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: =T—HILEFENEHNEGEESTEHD
T~
2020 2019
—EEH —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At beginning of year RF ) 7,430 13,497
Revenue recognised that was REFFABLBELES
included in the contract liabilities BB RN s
balance at beginning of year (5,961) (12,095)
Increases due to cash received, AEWREmEIN - ~EER
excluding amounts recognised FARAEER AW
as revenue during the year 13,639 6,028
At end of year RER 15,108 7,430

HEERERAT /2020 F 3k
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31 December 2020 —F —ZF#F+{—-HA=+—H

23. DEFERRED TAX

160

The movements in deferred tax assets during the year

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B iR R M aE (48)

23. EEFIE

EEHREENFRANZESHIT

EEREEE

Provision
for
Unpaid inventories

accrued and trade Unrealised
expenses receivables profit Total
HFERES
REAY FEWRE
FERHBI BE REREH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TER TR

2020 t- ot 33
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-FF—-H—H 123 317 1,623 2,063
Deferred tax credited/ A (R E)FENBRY

(charged) to profit or loss RIERE (FE10)

during the year (note 10) (91) 142 (102) (51)
Exchange realignment P 71 % 2 15 - 17
At 31 December 2020 R-E-TF+-A=1+—H 34 474 1,521 2,029
2019 “E-hE
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—R—H 424 318 1,498 2,240
Deferred tax credited/ A/ (HBRE)FRBEZ

(charged) to profit or loss EIERIE (FE10)

during the year (note10) (297) 1 125 (171)
Exchange realignment BB 3 (4) (2) - (6)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-N&+-A=+—H 123 317 1,623 2,063
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31 December 2020 —ZE_-_ZFEF+_-_F=+—H

23. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 23. EEHIE (&)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% (or a lower rate if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors) withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from
1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group's earnings will be retained in
Mainland China, so it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2020, the
aggregate amounts of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China were approximately HK$4,132,000 (2019:
HK$3,396,000).

The Group has no tax losses arising in Mainland China
(2019: HK$109,000, will expire in four years) for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of tax losses as at 31 December 2019 as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

ELERAEE (&)

Wb S RSN I A S E AT A INE %
EETIRNBRERE10% (EHR BRI
HANRZEEMBRIEAERERBEH
o BIREESEMTRE) BN - %8
FH_ZZNFE—A—BAEES 1@
AR-_ZEE+E+_A=+—RHB%EL
B2 F) o Bl It AN 25 [ 78 BE A P B (R b B
YZEWBATRE _EENF—A
—BRELEZANmDIRZREEMNE
A -

R-E-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H K&EHE
W ARG R H R B AR TEINF
ZHBARZRERBFEN ZBOH
BRELEHE EFRE AEEZH
FIGRER P BN - MZEMEAT
RA] B R AR TAIgE D IRZERF -
RZE-ZTF+-_A=+—H0 BEEH
FERHAE AR EREMNERR = ZE5
% /4,132,000 w( = F — L F:
3,396,000 7T) °

74 S8 I Ao P 2 A B 8 (=
T — L% : 109,000/ 7T R F A F
#) - A AIEEHE BB R AR R
RBLT -

RZB-NAF+ZA=+—8  LE3®
MEBERAETENAEE  RELE
EMBEEZMBARCZ2BE —RE
[ - IR KA B & B A FE AR gt A
A $H R B 2 BRIA RS 1R
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31 December 2020 —ZFE -—FF{—-H=+—H

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. BB
2020 2019
—E-BF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT

Issued and fully paid: BBITRER
400,000,000 (2019: 400,000,000) 400,000,000 f% ( =& — N4 -
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 400,000,000 &) G AR E &

0.01BTH LB 4,000 4,000

25. RESERVES 25. f#E

The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

Other reserve

The balance represented the aggregate paid-in capital
of the subsidiaries acquired, offset by investment costs
in subsidiaries of the Company during the
reorganisation of the Company in connection with the
listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange.

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the Company's subsidiaries registered in the PRC
shall appropriate a certain percentage of their net profit
after tax (after offsetting any prior years' losses)
calculated under the accounting principles generally
applicable to the PRC enterprises to the reserve fund.
When the balance of this reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years' losses or to increase capital. However, the
balance of the statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital after
these usages. After making the appropriation to the
statutory surplus reserve, the Company's subsidiaries
may also appropriate their profits for the year to the
discretionary surplus reserve upon approval by the
board of directors or the shareholders in a general
meeting.
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26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

26. &E

(a)

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$6,192,000 (2019: HK$1,326,000) and
HK$6,188,000 (2019: HK$1,326,000), respectively,
in respect of lease arrangements for the Office

Properties and a car parking space.

BERERWE

TEHRERS

TR AEERBAEMER —E
FEMAEELTYRNFEREEE KA
EAENEBREEND BB
6,192,000 ;L ( = & — JL & :
1,326,0007% 7T ) 6,188,000 % JT
—Z—A4F 1,326,000/ 7T) °

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEETHELANEREEE:
activities:
2020 —ECEH
Lease
liabilities
HESE
HK$'000
FTHER
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZEF—H—H 7,229
New leases e 6,188
Lease modification HEBET (713)
Foreign exchange movement G|\ 5 149
Interest expense MEMZ 383
Interest expense classified as NERKERSMEN
operating cash flows F BRI (383)
Changes from financing cash flows BERSTER (5,317)
At 31 December 2020 R-_E-_FF+-HA=+—H 7,536
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31 December 2020 —F —ZF#F+{—-HA=+—H

26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 26.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b)

activities: (Continued)

HRERERERME (B)

METDEENEESD - (B)

2019 —E—hE
Accrued
listing
expenses
included
in other
payables Lease
and accruals liabilities
ETAEAM
& RIE I
FEETER/
RELETAX HEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—H—H 11,278
New leases HHEE 1,326
Remeasurement resulting from FiERIKRILTHEMEH =
early-termination of a lease - (434)
Foreign exchange movement HNE BB - (70)
Interest expense M BFX - 544
Interest expense classified as DERKERSMEN
operating cash flows FERX - (544)
Changes from financing BEREREE
cash flows 9) (4,871)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-—hFE+=-—A=+—~1 - 7,229
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31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

26. RERTREBRHEE (H)

(c) HENRERHAE

FAReREXRTEENEERS

consolidated statement of cash flows is as M BZEIT
follows:
2020 2019
—E_ZF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within operating activities L EBEEN 383 544
Within financing activities BEEBHE R 5,317 4,871
27. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 27. EEEH

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not pledge any
assets (31 December 2019: Nil).

R-_ZE_ZTF+-_A=1+—8 A£E
WEEFEEMEE(ZE—LF+=A

=t—H:8E)-
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31 December 2020 —F—ZFF+=-H=+—H

28. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not
have any significant commitments.

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Names of the Group’s principal related

28. AiE

RWEHR - NEE W B EAALE -

29. EEARS
BRZEI MR LM FTEm 2 %
S4h - AEBNE N BT ETUT

R

(a) AEETEABH2HE A

parties and their relationship with the BRHEAEEZBR :
Group:
Name of related parties Relationship
BHRAEZHE B8 ]
Mr. YEUNG Director
BEaE 5%
Ms. WONG Director
Tzt 5
Peiport Scientific Limited A company controlled by Mr. YEUNG
and Ms. WONG

HEREERDA
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

29. FEBAEXRZ (&)

(Continued)
(b) Significant related party transactions (b) FAERNEBHAIZZOT
during the year are as follows:
2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FH&TT
Rental fee paid to directors  [AEEXZNHBEE B (i) 1,423 1,436
Rental fee paid to Peiport Mg FERMEBR DT
Scientific Limited WHEEM (i) 1,850 1,777
Acquisition of right-of-use W RREEE
assets (iii) 4,246 -

Notes: ML -

0] Certain subsidiaries in Mainland China rented commercial units (i) FEAMETHEARMBEERT
from Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG as offices and the transactions ZTHEMESN - BEXSRE
were conducted in accordance with the terms in the relevant RRAE SRR GTET - IRB TR
lease agreements. These are continuing connected transactions AIZFE14AS  ZERBFEHERS -
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(ii) The transactions were conducted in accordance with the terms (ii) R S HIREAE AT & 5 IR ETT -
in the relevant lease agreements. These are continuing RIELTRAF4AE  ZSHBE
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. BiER S °

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered (i) HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HItF
into lease agreements with Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport EAEESRIEGEE TR TR
Scientific Limited, respectively, in relation to the leasing of BEFHMEBR AR VEERZE - "
Office Properties and a car parking space for a term of 2 years. AERHEERLEMER—EAFE
These are connected transactions under 14A of the Listing i - BEIRAF - ZSHEAR TR
Rules. FIAAZE THBER S ©

(c) Compensation of key management (c) XEBXTEEEAEZHMH :

personnel of the Group:

Details of the compensation of key management
personnel of the Group, who are the directors, are
disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements.

AEETEEEAB(HFRER)Z
BN RAM A WE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
SRR EE ()

31 December 2020 —ZFE -—FF{—-H=+—H

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

31.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all financial assets
of the Group including trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents were
stated at amortised cost.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all financial
liabilities of the Group including trade payables and
financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals were stated at amortised cost.

The Group's classification of its financial assets and
liabilities is explained in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, management has
assessed that the fair values of trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group's financial controller is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. At each
reporting date, the financial controller analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. TRIEREERERBER

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
cash and cash equivalent. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial

AEBEZIECRHIAREREREAS
EZEY- - ZEeMIAZTIEZREDR
rEEZ2EESRES AKEHES
BEMEMEEIRSRAE WEHE

assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables WHRIEREKREBERESENRIE B
and trade payables, which arise directly from its EREHEZE

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial rEEZERITAMEENFERRA
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and SMNERRE - FERBREREBE SRR -
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees EEEEHNRMEERZEARNIK

policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by subsidiaries
in currencies other than the subsidiaries’ functional
currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change by 1% in the US$ exchange rate against RMB,

R BRABGRR T XXt -

SN R B

AEEAERZERERR - BRARRIR
BB ARIAMBRRIEEEB AL
BT 2 SHE SR ©

TREFERBEMEETRERT
4555 K 2 B 2 B B B i R 6
ERREATEEDHET S ARKE

with all other variables held constant, of the Group's K5I BE)1% WBURE -
profit before tax due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
If US$ strengthens against RMB ETHAREIE (1,034) (1,326)
If US$ weakens against RMB ETHARBEE 1,034 1,326
The Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely REBE BT ERELSERELIN

monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

PEE LR ©
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

170

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’'s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

As at 31 December 2020

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B iR R M aE (48)

32. cRIEMEE R ERBUER(#)

FERR

AEEERERATREEAIENFE =T
ETEE AKENBRRRAMBAER
EEERETERCEPHARRER
BRER o WA AEEFBEEIERE
FORAERR - BN S B E R A0 IR R AR 1
RERK e

RERERKFERER

TR ERAEENEERENEE
ZxkEaEERRE  TEEARNE@HE
B (BRIEEMER T EEANETBER
KB NWIERTES)  RRZZEZF
EN_E-AFE+-A=1+—HWELH
BEST - FIZVIMNBEHASEREERE
EAREE -

R-E-_ZEF+=-A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 R4
REFR HRAEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
E1Ra E2RB H3RE &A% @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
Trade and bills receivables* ZHENTARENER - - - 85,453 85,453
Financial assets included in SABRFE BER
prepayments, deposits, EhRERERNERERE
and other receivables
— Normal** —EE* 11,461 - - - 11,461
— Doubtful** — AR+ - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalent BeRASSED
— Not yet past due — HREH 210,150 - - - 210,150
221,611 - - 85,453 307,064
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31 December 2020 —FE—FF{—-H=+—H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. sRIAREEEERBGR (E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) 8RR (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BEE R R FERE (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZB-h&E+=-HA=+—~H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
(VAERREL::
FEER LHRAEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1ER EVIEES ERIEES Blenz @it

HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

Trade and bills receivables* BoENFERENER - - - 106,637 106,637
Financial assets included in STARRE  BER
prepayments, deposits, EtENTENSREE
and other receivables
— Normal** —[EE* 3,430 - - - 3430
— Doubtful** — g - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalent RERBLEED
— Not yet past due — WREH 177127 - - - 177127
180,557 - - 106,637 287,194
* For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * MAEEERGCRETEZNE S EIKIE
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is REWSEE  ERBEBREOERNITER
disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements. KHFE17HE -
*¥ The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, *x WEr ATBRFRIE © e REAMERRIBEN S
deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they MEEYAAPETEERNBRAERMEE
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial W= EER B AR R ARAEIE M - A
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. HEEEZERAIEY] - B8 ¢REE
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be WEEBEZWEA (A& -
“doubtful”.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIREBR  AEBAZETEESET
certain concentrations of credit risk as 32% (2019: Rl AREENESEYKRESRE
36%) of the Group's trade receivables were due from 32% (ZZF—NF :36%) JhAAEE /M
the Group's two largest customers. REPHR -
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's BERASBEREE S EWRFIE L EWEE
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills mERNEERBREEZ S BBRRE
receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the financial RS R EE17 -
statements.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internally generated cash flows from operations. The
Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to
ensure that it has adequate financial resources in
meeting its financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

32.

TREREERBRERICK (8)

RBESRR

AEEEEEBREMREMSANELS
RemgsEenBUtREiEzRn
P ARBERRIEERESMNN
NFEREGER RN EIRAERE
MR-

AEBRBRERRREHWRIERM KD
TREBEEIHBERET

2020 —E-EHF
On demand
and
less than
1year 1tobyears Total
RERR
PR—F —ZHEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Trade payables B 5 ER A 14,638 - 14,638
Financial liabilities included &t A E b & X182
in other payables and [EEFERNEHAs
accruals 1,271 - 1,271
Lease liabilities HEEAE 4,858 3,185 8,043
20,767 3,185 23,952
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. sRIAREEEERBGR (E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBES R (E)
2019 —E-hEF
On demand
and
less than
1 year 1 to b years Total
RER R
DR —F —EhRF wEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAT
Trade payables 2 5 e A 7,247 - 7,247
Financial liabilities included &t A E fih fE < 08 &
in other payables and EErEANTERARE
accruals 1,649 - 1,649
Lease liabilities HERE 5,210 2,479 7,689
14,106 2,479 16,585
Capital management EXER
The primary objectives of the Group's capital AEBMEAER T EZHEAREARE
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to BB RN I REFBRENERLL
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy QY HEEBRERRRBERKA
capital ratios in order to support its business and {t o

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes AEBEREELERRE (L RBAEER
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic R EREERNEERIEHFE -
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying BER AR ERNERE  AEENEH
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the BRS TREMRE - MRRREER
Group may adjust the dividend payment to REITHIR D - AEEHEETFERIN
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue HEMNHERIRE - RBE_T_TF
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally rZF-NFT+A=T—HLEFE"
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made EREARAZBE  BESIEFTEEL
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing ERCIETE

capital during the years ended 31 December 2020 and

2019.
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33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 33. {/EHEEH

BE-ZE-FF+-_A=+—HBHEEALRHR
EHEAILEM WEEAEF-

There were no significant events after 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this report.

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  34. RAR#MBMR K
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of BB R B PAWE BRI AR R Y

174

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BERAT
follows:
2020 2019
—ECBH —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHEIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHTB AR E - -
Right-of-use assets FREEE 390 1,116
Total non-current assets ERENEELE 390 1,116
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amount due from subsidiaries e s Bt B8 /A B k8 22,537 12
Prepayments, deposits AR - 2o REMEUGRIE
and other receivables 484 625
Cash and cash equivalents RERBSZEBY 62,070 86,307
Total current assets MEEERE 85,091 86,944
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Amount due to subsidiaries FEFB A T 518 4,260 2,831
Other payables and accruals HAb e 3E N st & 285 1,599
Lease liabilities HeEaE 361 364
Total current liabilities TEAREEE 4,906 4,794
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE 80,185 82,150
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. XA GBI REK (F)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

2020 2019
—g-gF —T-N%
HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FETT

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBERS

LIABILITIES 80,575 83,266
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAE 346 810
Total non-current liabilities EREEERE 346 810
Net assets BEFE 80,229 82,456
EQUITY =
Share capital R A 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note) i (M) 76,229 78,456
Total equity EmfaE 80,229 82,456

The amount is less than HK$1,000.

SEDHN1,00087T
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. &AAQA GBI REK (F)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: BT
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARHERENT -
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B EE Rt E#R Fobe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—HA—H - (21,265) (21,265)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAREEIBEE - (2,525) (2,525)
Capitalisation Issue AR BT (2,996) - (2,996)
New issue of shares from global offering B2 R E BRI TIR D 124,000 - 124,000
Share issue expenses AR DT (18,758) - (18,758)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R-Z—hFE+-_A=+—HK

—E-EF A 102,246 (23,790) 78,456
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEERE - (2,227) (2,227)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_TF+_-_A=+—H 102,246 (26,017) 76,229
35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 35. #LEMKHRE
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised B mxe RN —_E-—4F=A=-+/~"H
for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2021. CEFGHOEMETE -
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